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CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

S.N. | NAME

DESIGNATION

MR. RAMESH CHANDRA MITTAL

CHAIRMAN & NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MR. ALOK K. GARG

MANAGING DIRECTOR

MRS. KUSUM MITTAL

NON-EXECUTIVE WOMAN DIRECTOR

MR. ASHOK OMPRAKASH AGRAWAL

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

MR. PRAMOD FATEHPURIA*

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

OO | W N

MR. DHARMENDRA SOLANKI

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

7 MR. GAJENDRA SINGH

NON-EXECUTIVE INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

*Mr. Pramod Fatehpuria retired from the post of Independent Director W.E.F. 28.05.2024 due to tenure completion.

2. COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MR. ASHOK OMPRAKASH AGRAWAL- CHAIRMAN
MR. GAJENDRA SINGH- MEMBER

MR. DHARMENDRA SOLANKI- MEMBER

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
MR. ASHOK OMPRAKASH AGRAWAL- CHAIRMAN
MR. GAJENDRA SINGH- MEMBER

MR. DHARMENDRA SOLANKI- MEMBER

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MR. ASHOK OMPRAKASH AGRAWAL- CHAIRMAN
MR. GAJENDRA SINGH- MEMBER
MR. DHARMENDRA SOLANKI- MEMBER

3. KMPs

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

MR. ABHISHEK JAIN

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
MR. HEMANT SETHI

4. AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR
RAWKA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, INDORE

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

(For the financial year 2024-25)

L. N. JOSHI & CO.

COMPANY SECRETARIES, INDORE

INTERNAL AUDITOR
PRAVEEN SHRIVASTAVA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS, INDORE

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

(For term of 5 consecutive financial year i.e. 2025-26 to 2029-
30, subject to approval of members in forthcoming AGM)
JOSHI SAHAY AND COMPANY

COMPANY SECRETARIES, INDORE

5. REGISTERED OFFICE

201, PUSHPRATNA PARADISE

9/5, NEW PALASIYA, INDORE (M.P.) 452001
PHONE: 0731-4046321, 4028148

EMAIL: INVESTORS@MEDICAPS.COM
WEBSITE: WWW.MEDICAPS.COM

6. STOCK EXCHANGE (Where the Company’s Securities are Listed)

BSE LIMITED

7. SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

ANKIT CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED
PLOT NO. 60, ELECTRONIC COMPLEX,
PARDESHIPURA, INDORE (M.P.) 452010
PHONE: 0731-2551745
EMAIL:INVESTOR@ANKITONLINE.COM
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NOTICE OF THE 42N° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 42" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of MEDI-CAPS LIMITED will be held on
Thursday 18™ September, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) for
which purpose the Registered office of the company shall be deemed as the venue for the Meeting and the proceedings of the Annual
General Meeting shall be deemed to be made thereat, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Businesses:-

1.

(a) To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company together with the Report of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon for the financial year ended 31t March, 2025

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March, 2025
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon and Management Discussion Analysis and Corporate
Governance Report, as circulated to the members, be considered and adopted.”

(b) To consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company together with the Report of the
Auditors thereon for the financial year ended 31t March, 2025

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31% March,
2025 together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be considered and adopted.”

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Kusum Mittal (DIN: 00035356) who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 (6) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment

“RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Section 152 (6) and Article of Association of the Company and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
Mrs. Kusum Mittal (DIN: 00035356), who is liable to retire by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers
herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Non-Executive Woman Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.”

Special Businesses:-

3.

To appoint Joshi Sahay and Company, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and fix
their remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ‘SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015’ read with Circulars issued there under from time to
time and other applicable provisions as amended time to time (including any Statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, Joshi Sahay and
Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, Indore (Unique Code Number: P2025MP322400 and Peer Review Certificate No.:
6873/2025) be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing
from financial year 2025-2026 till financial year 2029-2030, to undertake secretarial audit as required under the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations and issue the necessary secretarial audit report for the aforesaid period on such remuneration, as may be
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to avail or obtain from the Secretarial
Auditor, such other services or certificates, reports, which the Secretarial Auditors may be eligible to provide or issue under the
applicable laws at a remuneration to be determined by the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to
the Committee of the Board or to any Director(s) or Officer(s) / Authorized Representative(s) of the Company, to do all such acts
and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors and/or the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, be and are hereby
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or expedient, including
filing the requisite forms with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or submission of documents with any other authority, for the
purpose of giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto and to settle all questions,
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard at any stage without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval
of the Members of the Company to the end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto
expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

Re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company
for a second term of five years:
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To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution, as a Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and
the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Mr. Dharmendra
Solanki (DIN: 09055239), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at the 38" Annual General Meeting of
the Company and who hold the office of the Independent Director up to 04™ February, 2026 and being eligible for re-appointment
as an Independent Director, who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence under Section 149 (6) of the
Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the company has received a notice in writing
from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Independent Director and
upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of directors, Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN:
09055239), be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold
office for a second term of 05 (five) consecutive years, w.e.f. 051" February, 2026 to 04™ February 2031 (both days inclusive).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and
things as may be required, necessary, expedient, in this behalf to give effect to this resolution.”

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PLACE: INDORE FOR MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

ABHISHEK JAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY
ACS-36699

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231
Registered Office: 201, Pushpratna Paradise
9/5, New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.) 452001
Website: www.medicaps.com

Email: investors@medicaps.com

Phone: 0731-4046321, 4028148

Notes:-

1.

In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, General Circular no. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021,
General Circular no. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021,General Circular no. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, Circular No.
02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023
followed by Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”) wvide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13,
2022, circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 2023 followed by SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated
October 03, 2024 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”), have permitted companies to conduct AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)
or other audio-visual means (OAVM), subject to compliance of various conditions mentioned therein. In compliance with the
aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars and the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 42" AGM of the Company is being convened
and conducted through VC/OAVM Facility, which does not require physical presence of Members at a common venue. The
Company has availed the facility of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for convening the 42" AGM through
VC/OAVM, a detailed process in which the members can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM has been enumerated in Note
number 33 of this Notice.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

Electronic dispatch of notice and annual report: In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI circulars physical copies of
the financial statements (including Board’s Report, Auditor’s Report or other documents required to be attached therewith) for the
Financial Year ended 31 March, 2025 pursuant to Section 136 of the Act and Notice calling the AGM pursuant to Section 101 of
the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder are being sent only in electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses
are registered with the Company/R&STA or the Depositories. The Company will not be dispatching physical copies of such
statements and Notice of AGM to any Member. Further as per amended Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a letter which providing the weblink including the exact path, where complete
details of Annual Report are available, will be sent by the Registrar and Share Transfer of the Company to those shareholders who
have not registered their email address(es), at their address registered with the Company.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to register the
same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic form and with the Company/R&STA in case the shares are
held by them in physical form after complying due procedure.

Members who have not registered their e-mail address and those members who have become the member of the Company after
Friday 15" August, 2025 being the cut-off date for sending soft copy of the Notice of 42 AGM and Annual Report for the
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

financial year 2024-25, may access the same from Company’s website at www.medicaps.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e.
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.com.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/
PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, SUCH A PROXY/ PROXIES NEED NOT BE
A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

Since the 42 AGM of the Company will be convened through VC/ OAVM, where there will be no physical attendance of
members, the requirement of appointment of proxies pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Act has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, attendance slip and proxy form will not be annexed to this Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 112 and 113 of the Act, corporate/Institutional member can authorize their representatives to
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. Provided a scan copy (PDF) of the Board Resolution
authorizing such representative to attend the AGM of the Company through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote
e-voting shall be sent to the Scrutinizer through the registered email address of the member(s) at Injoshics@gmail.com.with a copy
marked to the Company at investors@medicaps.com.

The Statement as required under Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts concerning the businesses with respect to Item
Nos. 3 & 4 forms part of this Notice is annexed hereto.

As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.ll of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 5, 2020, the matters of Special
Businesses as appearing at Item Nos. 3 & 4 of the accompanying Notice, are considered to be unavoidable by the Board and
hence, forming part of this Notice.

In terms of the Article of Association of the Company read with Section 152(6) of the Companies Act 2013, Mrs. Kusum Mittal
(DIN: 00035356) is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer herself for re-
appointment.

The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Paragraph 1.2.5 of the Secretarial
Standards -2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking re-
appointment/retire by rotation at the AGM are provided as an annexure to the Notice, forms integral part of this notice. Requisite
declarations have been received from Director’s for seeking re-appointment.

IEPF: Under the Act, dividends that are unclaimed/unpaid for a period of seven years are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”) administered by the Central Government. Members whose unclaimed dividends/shares
are be transferred to the IEPF Authority can claim the same by making an online application to the IEPF Authority in the
prescribed Web Form IEPF-5 by following the refund procedure as detailed on the website of IEPF Authority www.iepf.gov.in.
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Further, as per SEBI Circular dated April 20, 2018
all securities holders holding securities in physical form should submit their PAN and Bank account details to the RTA. SEBI vide
its CIRCULAR SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated 02nd July, 2025 has provided a special six-month window,
from July 7, 2025, to January 6, 2026, for investors to re-lodge old physical share transfer deeds that were originally submitted
before April 1, 2019, but were rejected, returned, or not processed due to deficiencies. This window allows investors to regularize
their ownership of shares and avoid potential legal and financial risks associated with unverified physical share certificates. All re-
lodged securities will be issued in dematerialized (demat) form.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form and want to provide/change/correct the bank account details should send the
same immediately to their concerned Depository Participant(s) and not to the Company. Members are also requested to give the
MICR Code of their bank to their Depository Participant(s). The Company will not entertain any direct request from such
Members for change of address, transposition of names, deletion of name of deceased joint holder and change in the bank account
details. While making payment of Dividend, if any, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent is obliged to use only the data
provided by the Depositories, in case of such dematerialized shares.

Members who are holding shares in physical form are advised to submit particulars of their PAN details, e-mail address, Mobile
Number, bank account, viz. name and address of the branch of the bank, MICR code of the branch, type of account and account
number etc. to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in prescribed Form ISR-1 quoting their folio number and enclosing the self-
attested supporting document and other forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655dated ~ November 3, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-
1/PICIR/2023/181 dated November 17, 2023 and as amended by SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37
dated May 7, 2024.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25,
2022 as amended from time to time, has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while
processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal/
exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a
duly filled and signed Form ISR—4, the format of which is available on the Company’s website www.medicaps.com and on the
website of the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents http://ankitonline.com. It may be noted that any service request can be
processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant.

SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including transmission
and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated
with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize the shares held by them
in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for assistance in this regard.

Further, SEBI vide its circular dated 16% March, 2023 in supersession of earlier circular dated 3" November, 2021, read with
clarification dated 14™ December, 2021 introduced common and simplified norms for processing investor’s service request by
Registrar and Transfer Agent(s) (RTAs) and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination. Accordingly, the RTA
cannot process any service requests or complaints received from the holder(s) / claimant(s), till PAN, KYC and Nomination
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

documents / details are updated. The Company has sent individual letters to all the Members holding shares of the Company in
physical form for furnishing the aforesaid details. This communication was also intimated to the Stock Exchange and available on
the website of the Company. In view of this requirement and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of
portfolio management, Members holding shares in physical form are once again requested to update their KYC details (through
Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and Form ISR-3, as applicable) and consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members
can download Forms to make their service request with RTA from link https://medicaps.com/shareholders-service-request-form-
download.php or contact the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent for assistance in this regard.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making a nomination is available for the Members in respect of the
shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nominations are requested to register the same by submitting
Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he may submit the same in
Form SH-14. Members who are either not desiring to register Nomination or would want to opt out, are requested to fill and
submit Form No. ISR-3. The said forms can be downloaded from the RTA website at http://ankitonline.com. Members are
requested to submit the said form to their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are
held in physical form, quoting their folio no.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the
Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates along with the requisite KYC Documents for
consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form
only.

SEBI vide Circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/ OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31% July 2023 (updated as on August 04, 2023 vide
Circular No. https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/circulars/aug-2023/corrigendum-cum-amendment-to-circular-dated-july-31-2023-on-
online-resolution-of-disputes-in-the-indian-securities-market_74976.html) has specified that a shareholder shall first take up
his/her/their grievance with the listed entity by lodging a complaint directly with the concerned listed entity and if the grievance is
not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines, escalate the same through the
SCORES Portal in accordance with the process laid out therein. Only after exhausting all available options for resolution of the
grievance, if the shareholder is not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/ they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online
Dispute Resolution (“ODR”) Portal. Shareholders are requested to take note of the same. The aforesaid updated SEBI Circular can
be viewed on the following link https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/circulars/aug-2023/corrigendum-cum-amendment-to-circular-dated-
july-31-2023-on-online-resolution-of-disputes-in-the-indian-securities-market 74976.html.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in
address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised to not leave their Demat account(s) dormant for
long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant, and holdings should be
verified from time to time.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.
Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning to the accounts and operations of the Company are requested to send
their queries to the Company Secretary at least 7 (seven days) before the date of the meeting so that the required information can
be made available at the meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and
Register of Contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act and relevant
documents referred to in this Notice of AGM and statement, will be available electronically for inspection by the Members during
the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the Members
from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email
to investors@medicaps.com.

Members are requested to contact the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for all matters connected with Company’s shares at
Ankit Consultancy Private Limited, 60 Pardeshipura, Electronic Complex, Indore (M.P.). Email: investor@ankitonline.com.
Investor Grievance Redressal: The Company has designated an exclusive e-mail ID i.e., investors@medicaps.com to enable the
investors to register their complaints / send correspondence, if any.

Webcast: Members who are entitled to participate in the AGM can view the proceedings of AGM by logging in the website of
CDSL at www.evotingindia.com using the login credentials.

The Company has appointed Mr. L.N. Joshi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-5201; CP No. 4216) to act as
the scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting during AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.
The voting rights of Shareholders shall be in proportion of shares held by them to the total paid up equity shares of the company as
on Thursday 11" September, 2025, being the cut-off date.

A person who is not a member as on Thursday 11™ September, 2025 should treat this Notice for information purpose only.

A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after dispatch of notice of AGM and prior to the
Cut-off date i.e., Thursday 11" September, 2025 shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e., remote e-voting
or e-voting during AGM following the procedure mentioned in this Notice.

The recorded transcript of the forthcoming AGM shall also be made available on the website of the Company -
www.medicaps.com as soon as possible after the Meeting is over.

The procedure for joining the AGM through VC/OAVM is mentioned in this Notice. Since the AGM will be held through
VC/OAVM, the route map is not annexed in this Notice.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and any amendments thereto, Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), Regulation 44 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations and MCA Circulars, the facility for vote through electronically in respect of the businesses to be
transacted at the AGM is being provided by the Company through Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”).
Necessary arrangements have been made by the Company with CDSL to facilitate remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM.
The instructions for shareholders for remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM and joining meeting through VC/OAVM
are as under: -
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Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in
demat mode.

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual
shareholders in demat mode.

(i) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v

~

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 2000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on accounts of first come first
served basis.
The voting period begins on Monday 15" September, 2025 from 9.00 a.m. and ends on Wednesday 17t September, 2025 at
5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date (record date) of Thursday 11 September, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.
Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue.
Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, under Regulation 44 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; listed entities
are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has
been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India.
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-
voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of
Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register
again with the ESPs, thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of
participating in e-voting process.
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in
demat mode.
In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account
maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email
Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.
Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of |Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and

Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with
CDSL Depository

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click
on Login icon and select New System Myeasi Tab.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number
and PAN No. from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, users will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-
voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a

holding securities in
demat mode with
NSDL Depository

Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen
will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you
will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
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https://www.evoting.nsdl.com// either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e.,
your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Participants (DP)

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Shareholders Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be
(holding securities | able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
in demat mode) | NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.
login through their | Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting
Depository service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual

meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget
Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual

Shareholders
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.

18002109911

Individual

Shareholders
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 48867000 and 022 -

24997000

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-

individual shareholders in demat mode.

(vi) Login method for e-Voting and to join virtual meeting for physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and have logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of
any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
For physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
e  Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
Dividend Bank | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your
Details demat account or in the company records in order to login.
OR e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member
Date of  Birth id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
(DOB)

(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(viii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders

(ix)

)
(xi)

holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their
login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting
for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through
CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this
Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant company, i.e., Medi-Caps Limited on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting.
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that
you dissent to the Resolution.

(xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
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(xiii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you

wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
(xvi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click

on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvii) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for

verification.

(xviii) Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians — For Remote Voting only

10.

11.

12.

e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

e Itis Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; investors@medicaps.com (designated email address by
company), if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

Instructions for shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM & E-Voting during meeting are as under
The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-
voting.
The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful
login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.
Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.
Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPad for better experience.
Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.
Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable
Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance at least seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at investors@medicaps.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM
but have queries may send their queries in advance seven days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investors@medicaps.com. These queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions

during the meeting.

Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the

Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting

system available during the AGM.

If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have

not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered

invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next speaker will be invited

to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with a video/ camera along with good Internet

speed.

The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, for smooth

conduct of the AGM.

Process for those shareholders whose Email/Mobile No. are not registered with the Company/Depositories

For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share

certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar

Card) including duly filed up request form ISR-1 by email to Company/RTA email id.

For Demat shareholders- Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP).

For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant

(DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository.

Declaration of results

The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting during the AGM, first count the votes cast during the AGM,
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a
consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairperson of the Company or the
person authorized by him, who shall countersign the same.
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B. Based on the scrutinizer’s report, the Company will submit within 2 (two) working days of the conclusion of the AGM to
the Stock Exchange, details of the voting results as required under Regulation 44(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

C. The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report, will be hosted on the website of the Company at
www.medicaps.com and on the website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com, immediately after the declaration of the result
by the Chairperson or a person authorized by him in writing and communicated to the Stock Exchange.

D. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the Meeting, i.e. Thursday 18™ September, 2025 subject to
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolutions.

37. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 18002109911.

38. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25"Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
call toll free no. 18002109911.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PLACE: INDORE FOR MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

ABHISHEK JAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY
ACS-36699

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231
Registered Office: 201, Pushpratna Paradise
9/5, New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.) 452001
Website: www.medicaps.com

Email: investors@medicaps.com

Phone: 0731-4046321, 4028148

IN TERMS OF THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (THE “ACT”), SECRETARIAL
STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETINGS (“SS-2”) AND THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 (“SEBI LISTING
REGULATIONS”), THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT SETS OUT THE MATERIAL FACTS RELATING TO AGENDA
ITEM 3 AND 4 AS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE OF 42"° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ITEM NO. 3: To appoint Joshi Sahay and Company, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company and fix their remuneration.

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) the Company has to annex to its Board’s Report a Secretarial Audit
Report given by a practicing company secretary as per Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules 2014. Further,
Section 179 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 provide that the appointment
of Secretarial Auditor shall be made by the Board at the meeting of the Board.

However, SEBI vide its notification dated 12th December, 2024 amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations). The Amended regulation read with the SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 31st December, 2024 (the SEBI Circular) have inter-alia prescribed the term of
appointment/re-appointment, eligibility, qualifications and disqualifications of Secretarial Auditor of a Listed Company.

As per the amended Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the Company and its material unlisted subsidiary company
incorporated in India is required to undertake Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company
Secretary and annex a Secretarial Audit Report in such form as specified by SEBI, with the annual report of the Company.

Pursuant to the amended Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, w.e.f. 01st April, 2025, every Listed Company on the
recommendation of the Board of Directors shall appoint or re-appoint :-

(i) an Individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than one term of five consecutive years or

(i) a Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five consecutive years

with the approval of its shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the above, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 05" August, 2025, on the recommendation of Audit
Committee, considered, approved and recommended to the shareholders of the Company for their approval, the appointment of Joshi
Sahay and Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, (Unique Code: P2025MP322400 and Peer Review Certificate No.: 6873/2025),
as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for period of five consecutive years commencing from Financial Year 2025-2026 till
financial year 2029- 2030 to undertake secretarial audit report for aforesaid period.

Joshi Sahay and Company have consented to the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the
limit specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. They have further confirmed that they are not disqualified to be
appointed as Secretarial Auditors in term of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies Secretaries Act, 1980 and Rules
and Regulations made thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the SEBI
Circular.

Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as follows:

% 60,000 (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) plus applicable tax and Reimbursement of
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Proposed Fees Payable to Secretarial Auditor | out-of-pocket expenses if any for financial year 2025-26. The remuneration for the
subsequent year (s) of their term shall be determined based on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee and Board of the Directors of the Company.

Terms of Appointment 5 Consecutive Years i.e. from the financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30.
Any material changes in the fee payable to | Not Applicable

such auditor from that paid to the outgoing
auditor along with the rationale for such
change

Detailed explanation is given in item no. 3 of statement under Section 102 of the
Basis of Recommendation of Appointment Companies Act, 2013, further based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board re-commends the Ordinary Resolution for appointment of
Secretarial auditor.

Details in relation to and credentials of the | Joshi Sahay and Company is a partnership firm of Practicing Company Secretaries
secretarial auditor proposed to be appointed established in 2025 by two partners. The firm is founded with a vision to deliver
high-quality, reliable, and value-driven professional services in the field of
corporate laws and governance. The firm is Peer Reviewed by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

The partners of the firm bring with them over 25 years of rich experience in the
field of corporate laws Compliance management, corporate structuring, listing
compliance, SEBI Regulation, RBI, due diligence etc.

The signing partner - Mr. L.N. Joshi, aged 49 years, Mr. L.N. Joshi is Master of
Commerce (M. Com), Law Graduate and fellow member of Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and also registered as an Insolvency Professional. He has wide
and extensive experience of over 25 years in Corporate Laws, Listing Regulation,
RBI, SEBI, Depository Law, Insolvency and Bankruptcy code etc.

Other disclosures
No order has been passed by ICSI/SEBI/MCA/any other competent authority/Court, both in India or outside India, in past 5 years
against the proposed secretarial auditor.

Joshi Sahay and Company did not have any business association with the Company, its holding or subsidiary companies or
any of the Promoter or Promoter Group entities during the last three financial years.

The Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of
appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditors.

Therefore, Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members by way of an
Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are interested or concerned,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

ITEM NO. 4: Re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a Non Executive Independent Director of the
Company for a second term of five years

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 05" February, 2021 had appointed Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as an
Additional Director of the Company to hold office till the next Annual General Meeting. Further, the Members in their 38" Annual
General Meeting held on Tuesday, 28™ September, 2021 confirmed the appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a first term of 5 years w.e.f. from 05" February, 2021 to 04"
February, 2026. Accordingly, the tenure of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239), as a Non-Executive Independent Director is set
to expire on 04™ February, 2026.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation

of independent directors, has recommended re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a Non-Executive
Independent Directors for second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company.
The Board, based on the performance evaluation and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
considers that, given his background and experience and contributions made by him as a position of members of various committee, the
continued association of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) would be beneficial for the Company and it is desirable to continue
to avail his services as a Non Executive Independent Director.

Accordingly, it is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a Non-Executive Independent

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company
w.e.f. 5" February, 2026 to 4™ February, 2031 & pass necessary Special resolution at this AGM.
Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) is not disqualified from being re-appointed as a Non Executive Independent Director in
terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his consent to act as a Non Executive Independent Director. The Company has also
received declaration from him that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Act and under
regulation 16(1)(b) and other applicable Regulation of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the
conditions for re-appointment as an Independent Director as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. He
has confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any order from SEBI or any such authority and has
given his consent to act as Director of the Company. The Company has received notices in writing from a Member under Section 160
of the Act, proposing the candidature of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) for the office of Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company.

The brief profile of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) who is proposed to be re-appointed as a non-executive
independent director is annexed herewith separately with this notice.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 read with Schedule IV to the Act, a copy of the draft appointment letter in
relation to re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki (DIN: 09055239) as a Non-Executive Independent Director setting out the terms
and conditions of the re-appointment would be available for inspection by the Members, by writing an email to the Company at
investors@medicaps.com.
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The disclosure under Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations is attached to this notice separately.
Except proposed appointee and his relatives, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of the

Notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution set out in item no. 4 of this notice for approval of members.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025
PLACE: INDORE

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

ABHISHEK JAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY
ACS-36699

Registered Office: 201, Pushpratna Paradise
9/5, New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.) 452001

Website: www.medicaps.com
Email: investors@medicaps.com
Phone: 0731-4046321, 4028148

Additional Information of Director who retires by rotation and seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting
pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial

Standard of General Meeting:

Name of Director

Mrs. Kusum Mittal (DIN: 00035356)
(Non-Executive Woman Director)

Mr. Dharmendra  Solanki
09055239)

(Non-Executive Independent Director)

(DIN:

DIN 00035356 09055239
Date of Birth & Age 08™ August, 1950 24™ September, 1975
75 Years 49 Years
Date of first Appointment on board 04™ May, 1991 (Initial date of appointment) | 05" February, 2021 (Initial date of

16" October 2019 (Appointment as Non-
Executive Director)

appointment for period of 05 years as
Independent Director)

05 August, 2025 (Date of re-appointment
for second term of 5 years as Independent
Director)

Nature of Expertise / Experience in
specific functional areas

Having wide experience in Real Estate,
investments and finance business activities.

He Possess 27 years of post-qualification
experience and a good exposure in
Accounts, Finance and Taxation.

Qualification

B.A.

B. Com. & M. Com.

Terms and conditions of appointment

As stated in the resolution presented to the
42" Annual General Meeting

As stated in the resolution & explanatory
Statement presented to the 42" Annual
General Meeting

No. & % of Equity Shares held in the | 12000 (0.10%) Nil

Company including shareholding as a | Not holding any share as a beneficial owner

beneficial owner

List of outside Company’s directorship | Nil Nil

held

List of Companies in which resigned in | Nil Nil

the past three years

Chairman / Member of the Committees | Nil Member of the following committees:

of the Board of Directors of the 1) Audit Committee.

Company 2) Nomination & remuneration Committee.
3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

Details of remuneration sought to be | Nil NIL

paid, and the remuneration last drawn by

such person including sitting fees paid

Chairman / Member of the Committees | Nil Nil

of the Board Directors of other

Companies in which he is director

Chairman / Member of the Committees | Nil Nil

of the Board of Directors of other

Companies in which she resigned in the

past three years

Relationship between directors inter-se Mrs. Kusum Mittal is a relative of Mr. | Nil

Ramesh Chandra Mittal (Chairperson
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& Non-Executive Promoter Director) and
Mr. Alok K Garg (Managing Director)

Number of Board meetings attended
during the financial year

During the year, 01 April, 2024 to 31%
March, 2025, Four (04) Board Meetings of
the Company were held, and Mrs. Kusum
Mittal attended all Meetings.

During the year, 01 April, 2024 to 31
March, 2025, Four (04) Board Meetings of
the Company were held, and Mr.
Dharmendra Solanki attended all Meetings.

In case of independent directors, the
skills and capabilities required for the
role and the manner in which the
proposed person meets such
requirements

NA

The role and capabilities as required in the
case of an independent director are well
defined in the Policy on Nomination,
Appointment, and Removal of Directors.
Further, the Board has a defined list of core
skills / expertise / competencies, in the
context of its business and sector for it to
function effectively.

The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board has evaluated the
profile of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki and
concluded that he possess the relevant skill
and capabilities to discharge the role of
Independent Director.

BRIEF RESUME OF PROPOSED APPOINTEE

Name

Brief Resume

1 Mrs. Kusum Mittal

are consistently fulfilled.

Mrs. Kusum Mittal is the Non-Executive Director of your Company since 16%
October, 2019. She is a graduate in Arts and is a businesswoman having wide
experience in Real Estate, Investments and Finance Activities. As a non-executive
director of the Company, she provides an independent view on the running of our
business, governance and boardroom best practice. She actively participates in the
discussions with the Chairman or other board members in the Board Meetings and
persistently endeavors to make sure that the responsibilities towards stakeholders

2 Mr. Dharmendra Solanki

He has completed Bachelor and Master Degree in commerce from a reputed
institution, Vikram University, Ujjain (M.P.). He Possess 27 years of post-
qualification experience and a good exposure in Accounts, Finance and Taxation.
He is well known for his analytical skills and abilities to deal with accounting and
finance issues. Mr. Dharmendra Solanki possesses humble confidence with
unwavering professionalism and has innate problem-solving skills. He pays
attention to details and has great knowledge of taxation as well.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025
PLACE: INDORE

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231
Registered Office: 201, Pushpratna Paradise
9/5, New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.) 452001
Website: www.medicaps.com

Email: investors@medicaps.com

Phone: 0731-4046321, 4028148

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

ABHISHEK JAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY
ACS-36699
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,
Medi-Caps Limited

Your Director hereby presents the 42" Annual Report of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, along
with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon.

. STATE OF AFFAIRS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY_ OF STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS:
The standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 315 March 2025 have
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and as amended from time to time. The following table shows the operational results of the Company for the Financial Year
2024-25 as compared that of previous year:

(Amount in Lakhs except EPS)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Total Income 297.91 731.26 2820.66 2782.01
Total Expenditure Before Interest and Depreciation 253.40 232.52 2730.47 2737.96
Profit/Loss before Interest, Depreciation & Tax
(EBIDTA) 4451 498.74 90.19 44.05
Less: Interest 0.00 0.00 2.48 0.00
Less: Depreciation 16.01 16.01 171.82 168.65
Profit/Loss before Tax 28.50 482.73 (84.11) (124.60)
Less:
(a) Current Tax 0.00 95.00 0.00 95.00
(b) Earlier year (excess)/short provision for tax written (25.56) 0.00 (25.56) 5.56
back
(c) Deferred Tax (1.45) (1.09) (1.45) (1.09)
Proflt/_ Loss for the period from continuing 5551 388.82 (57.10) (224.07)
operations
Profit/Loss from discontinued operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit/Loss for the period 55.51 388.82 (57.10) (224.07)
Other Comprehensive Income 29.95 149.36 86.43 465.27
Total _C_:omprer_lenswe Income for the period 85.46 538.18 29.33 241.20
comprising Profit/(Loss)
EPS (Equity Shares of INR 10/- each) (in INR)
Basic and Diluted 0.45 3.12 (0.46) (1.80)
(for continuing and discontinued operations)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
In the financial year 2024-25 the Company, on a standalone basis, earned total income of INR 297.91 Lakhs and generated a
profit after tax (Before Comprehensive Income) of INR 55.51 Lakhs. Further on a consolidated basis, the Company has
earned a total income of INR 2820.66 Lakhs and incurred a loss (Before Comprehensive Income) of INR 57.10 Lakhs. The
consolidated financials reflect the cumulative performance of Medi-Caps Limited along with its wholly owned subsidiary i.e.
Medgel Private Limited.

. CHANGE IN REGISTERED OFFICE
During the financial year 2024-25, Members in their 415 Annual General Meeting held on 26" September, 2024 approved
the shifting of the registered office of the Company from Mhow - Neemuch Road, Sector 1, Pithampur - 454775, Dist. Dhar
(M.P.) to 201, Pushpratna Paradise 9/5 New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.) 452001, w.e.f. 01% October, 2024.

. ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) read with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to place copy of annual
return for Financial year 2024-25 is applicable to the Company and the same is available on the website of your Company
i.e. https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Draft-MGT-7_Annual-Return.pdf

. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEE AND GENERAL MEETING
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business policy and strategy apart from other Board business.
The notice of the Board Meeting is given in advance to all the Directors. The agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings is
circulated at least 07 (seven) days prior to the date of the meeting. The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings
includes detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision. The
details of the number of meetings of the Board and its Committees held during the Financial Year 2024-25 forms part of the
Corporate Governance Report. Further, 415t Annual General Meeting of the Company for the Financial year 2023-2024 was
held on Thursday, 26 September 2024 and no Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held during the
financial year 2024-25.

. DIVIDEND
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-25, as the profit earned during the year is
considered inadequate. The available surplus has been retained to strengthen the financial position of the company and to
meet future business requirements.
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6. AMOUNT TRANSFERED TO RESERVES
During the year under review, no amount was transferred to any of the reserves by the Company.

7. DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.
DETAILS OF DEPOSITS WHICH ARE NOT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER
V OF THE ACT:
Not Applicable, Since Company has not accepted any deposit; therefore, the question does not arise regarding non-
compliance with the requirement of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.
DISCLOSURE OF UNSECURED LOAN RECEIVED FROM DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 2 (31) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2 (1) (c) (viii) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company had not
received any unsecured loan from directors during the financial year 2024-25.

8. SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES OF THE COMPANY
The Company continues to have one Wholly Owned Subsidiary i.e. Medgel Private Limited. Further, the Company does not
have any associate or joint venture company at the beginning or closing or any time during the year 2024-25. Further, there
are no companies that have become/ceased to be subsidiary, associate or joint venture of the Company during the financial
year 2024-25.

During the financial year, your Board of Directors has reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. The consolidated
financial statements of your Company are prepared in accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013; and
forms part of this Annual Report.

A separate statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of the Subsidiary in the prescribed
Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE-A and hence is not repeated here for sake of brevity. There has been
no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiary company.

In accordance with fourth proviso of Section 136 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report of the
Company, containing inter alia the audited standalone and the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2025, along with relevant documents has been placed on the website of the Company,
www.medicaps.com. Further, audited financial statements of the subsidiary company have also been placed on the website
of the Company https://www.medicaps.com/subsisiary_company.php.

In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Financial Statement of the subsidiary
company is not required to be sent to the members of the Company. The Company shall provide a copy of the annual
accounts of its subsidiary company to the members of the Company on their request. The annual accounts of its subsidiary
company will also be kept open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during business hours.

Pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the details
of investments made in the subsidiary have been furnished in Notes forming part of the Accounts. Further Company has not
given any loans/advances to the subsidiary of the Company.

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY
Medgel Private Limited is material wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as per the thresholds laid down under
Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as ‘SEBI
Listing Regulations”). The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a Policy for determining material subsidiaries
which is in line with the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time. The Policy has been uploaded on the
Company’s website at: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary-f.pdf

9. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31t March, 2025, have been prepared in
accordance with applicable IND AS 110- “Consolidated Financial Statements” as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and as per general instructions for preparation of consolidated financial statements given in Schedule Il and other applicable
provisions of the Act, and in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations.
The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the Auditors' Report thereon forms part of the Annual Report.

10. DETAILS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KMPs
The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in accordance with the provision of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with an appropriate combination of Executive,
Non-Executive and Independent Directors.

a) Constitution of the Board
As on 31t March 2025 Board of Directors comprises of a total of 06 (Six) Directors namely:

S.N. Name of Directors DIN Designation
1 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal 00035272 Chairman and Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
2 Mr. Alok K. Garg 00274321 Managing Director
3 Mrs. Kusum Mittal 00035356 Non-Executive Woman Director
4 Mr. Ashok Agrawal Omprakash 07870578 Independent Director
5 Mr. Dharmendra Solanki 09055239 Independent Director
6 Mr. Gajendra Singh 10253991 Independent Director

The Board members are highly qualified with the strong varied experience in the relevant field of the business activities of the
Company which plays significant roles for the business policy and decision-making process and provide guidance to the
executive management to discharge their functions effectively.

b) Change in Directors

During the financial year 2024-25, second and final term of Mr. Pramod Fatehpuria (DIN: 00972389) Independent director,
has been completed, consequently he ceased/retired from the directorship of the Company w. e. f. the close of business hours
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11.

12.

on 28™M May, 2024. Your Board places on record his deep appreciation of the valuable contribution made by him during his
tenure as Independent Director of the Company.

Further during the current financial year 2025-26, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board in its meeting held on 05" August, 2025 approved the re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Solanki
(DIN: 09055239) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five years w.e.f. 05"
February, 2026 to 04" February, 2031 subject to approval of the shareholder in ensuing AGM.
¢) Board Independence
Our definition of ‘Independent Director’ is derived from Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 149 (6)
of the Companies Act, 2013. As on 31% March 2025, the Company is having following 03 (Three) Independent Directors:

1. Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal - DIN: 07870578
2. Mr. Dharmendra Solanki : DIN: 09055239
3. Mr. Gajendra Singh : DIN: 10253991

d) Directors liable to retire by rotation seeking re-appointment
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company's Articles of Association,
Mrs. Kusum Mittal (DIN: 00035356), Non-Executive Director retires by rotation at the ensuing 42™ Annual General Meeting
and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. Your directors have recommended her appointment for approval of
shareholders, in the ensuring Annual General Meeting of the Company.
e) Key Managerial Personnel
As on 31t March, 2025, the following have been designated as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to
Sections 2 (51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time:

1. Mr. Alok K. Garg (DIN: 00274321), Managing Director.

2. Mr. Abhishek Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer;

3. Mr. Hemant Sethi, Chief Financial Officer.
f) Change in the Key Managerial Personnel
During the year under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.
Disqualifications of Directors
During the year under review, declarations were received from the Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board appraised the same and found that none of the directors is disqualified from holding office as
director.
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
All Independent Directors have submitted their declarations as required under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 25 (8) of SEBI Listing Regulations stating that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under section
149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time.

Further in terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed

that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence and
that they are independent of the Management. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the declaration and
confirmation submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company hold the highest standards of integrity and
possess the required expertise and experience required to fulfill their duties as Independent Directors.

In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended up to the date, Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have
registered themselves with the databank maintained by The Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”). The
Independent Directors are also required to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by the 1ICA within a
period of 2 (two) years from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank, unless they meet the criteria specified for
exemption. All Independent Directors of the Company have already cleared an online proficiency self-assessment test
conducted by IICA.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of your company, to the best of their
knowledge, belief, ability and explanations obtained by them, confirm that-

a. inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper

explanation relating to material departures.

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that year.

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.

d. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and operating effectively.

f. The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework and testing of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory, and secretarial auditors and external agencies, including audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by Management and the
relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial
controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is assisted by several committees, whose delegated authority enhances role clarity and the effective execution of
responsibilities throughout our business. These committees are tasked with governance issues and provide periodic reports to
the Board on their activities. Each committee evaluates its effectiveness by reviewing its activities against approved terms of
reference in alignment with delegated powers and authority.

The Details of Committees of the Board are given below:-

(i) Audit Committee

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

(iv) Finance Committee

The details with respect to the composition, powers, roles, terms of reference, Meetings held and attendance of the Directors

at such Meetings of the relevant Committees are given in detail in the Report on Corporate Governance of the Company

which forms part of this Report.
MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Independent Directors met once during the year on 12 February, 2025. The meeting was conducted in an informal
manner without the presence of the Chairman, Managing Director and Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors of the
Company.
COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy which lays down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to be appointed as directors
and or senior management personnel of the company, along with the criteria for determination of remuneration of directors,
KMP’s and other employees and their evaluation and includes other matters, as prescribed under the provisions of Section 178
of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations. Policy of the Company has been given at the website
of the Company at Remuneration-Policy.pdf (medicaps.com) The details of the same are also covered in Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.
A) STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS HAS BEEN MADE
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, The Board of Directors has carried
out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and individual directors. The performance of the Board
was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from all the directors because of criteria such as the Board composition and
structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and other individual
Directors (including Independent Directors) which include criteria for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors and
Executive Directors. The evaluation process inter alia considers attendance of Directors at Board and committee meetings,
acquaintance with business, communicating inter se board members, effective participation and domain knowledge,
compliance with code of conduct, vision and strategy.
The Board carried out an annual performance evaluation of the Board, Committees, Individual Directors and the

Chairman. The Chairman of the respective Committees shared the report on evaluation with the respective Committee
members. The performance of each Committee was evaluated by the Board, based on report on evaluation received from
respective Committees. The report on performance evaluation of the Individual Directors was reviewed by the Chairman of the
Board and feedback was given to Directors.
Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated. The performance evaluation criteria for independent directors are determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. An indicative list of factors that may be evaluated include participation and contribution by a director,
commitment, effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders,
integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and judgments. Further details are reported in the
Corporate Governance Report.
Statement with regard to integrity, expertise and experience of the Independent Director appointed during the year
During the year under review, the Board has not appointed any Independent Director in the Company. However, in the opinion
of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience, expertise and hold high standards of
integrity for the purpose of Rule 8 (5) (iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. List of key skills, expertise and core
competencies of the Board, including the Independent Directors, is provided in Corporate Governance Report.
B) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME IMPARTED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Your Company has familiarized the Independent Directors, with regard to their roles, rights, responsibilities, nature of the
industry in which your Company operates, the business model of your Company etc. The Familiarization Programme was
imparted to the Independent Directors during the meetings of the Board of Directors.
The details of program for familiarization of Independent Directors of the Company is available on Company’s website at
https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Familiarization-policy-2024-25.pdf
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations disclosure on
particulars relating to Investment are stated in Note No. 3 & 6 of Standalone Financial Statement. Further your company has
not given any loan or advances in nature of loan to any other Body Corporate or person. During the financial year no new
investment made by the company in securities. However, details of outstanding investments in securities are disclosed as
under:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Name of the Company Nature of Transactions Investment made/ Closing value as on

Guarantee/ Loans Provided 315t March, 2025
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17.

18.

Medgel Private Limited
(Wholly Owned Subsidiary) Non-Current Investment 4282.35
(CIN: U24239MP2007PTC019204)

Natural Capsules Limited

(CIN: L85110KA1993PLC014742) Non-Current Investment 0.18

Mutual Funds & SIP Current Investment 1297.99

*The investments are reported as per relevant Ind-As.
The above-mentioned investments are within the limits as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTY
In line of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a
Policy on dealing with related party transactions, Standard Operating Procedures for purpose of identification and monitoring
of  such transactions. The  policy of RPT is  available on the Company’s  website
https://medicaps.com/upload/RPT_Policy Medicaps.pdf

During the year under review, all related party transactions entered by the company, were approved by the Audit
Committee and were at arm's length and in the ordinary course of business. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for related
party transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis.
There were no material related party contracts entered into by the Company during the year under review. Accordingly, the
disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the
Company for FY 2024-25 and hence does not form part of this report.

Details of related party transactions entered into by the Company, in terms of Companies Act, 2013 and IND AS-
24 have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone/consolidated financial statement forming part of this Annual Report
2024-25.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO
The particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as
required under sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule (8)(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given as under:

S. No. Particulars Details

(A) Conservation of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy Not applicable as there was no such business
operation

(i) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate Not applicable as there was no such business

sources of energy operation
(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment Nil
(B) Technology Absorption
(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption Not Applicable
(i) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost Not Applicable
reduction, product development or import substitution

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last The Company has neither purchased within
three years reckoned from the beginning of the Financial India nor imported any technology.
Year)

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development The Company has not incurred any
expenditure on Research and Development
during the year under review.

(c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo During the year under review, there was
neither inflow nor outflow of foreign
exchange.

19. STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is expected to play an important role in establishing the control environment, including clarity of expectations
regarding integrity and ethics and adherence to codes of conduct and creating clear accountability for performance of internal
control responsibilities. The Company’s Board of Directors has devised systems, policies and procedures/frameworks, which
are currently operational within the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, which includes
adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding assets of the Company, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. In line with best practices,
the Audit Committee and the Board review these internal control systems to ensure they remain effective and are achieving
their intended purpose. Where weaknesses, if any, are identified because of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to
strengthen controls. These controls are in turn reviewed at regular intervals. The company has laid down adequate systems and
well-drawn procedures for ensuring internal financial controls. It has appointed an external audit firm as internal auditors for
periodically checking and monitoring the internal control measures.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the function of these
controls, procedures or systems occurred during the year under review. There have been no significant changes in the
Company’s internal financial controls during the year that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect
its internal financial controls. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure, controls and
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures.
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20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the financial year, your Company did not meet criteria laid down under the provisions of Section 135 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly the
provisions Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

RATIO OF THE REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN EMPLOYEE’S REMUNERATION
AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Disclosure requirements pursuant to provision of Section 197(12) of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended up to date, given in the
“ANNEXURE-B” and forms an integral part of Board Report.

During the year, none of the employees is drawing remuneration of more than INR 102.00 Lakhs or more per
annum or INR 8.50 Lakhs per month for part of the year. Further, details of top ten employees in terms of the receipt of
remuneration as prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, as amended up to date, containing details prescribed under rule 5 (3) of the said rules, are available at Corporate
Office of the Company. In terms of Section 136 (1) of the Act, the Annual Report is being sent to the Members excluding the
aforesaid details. Any Member desirous of obtaining above said details may write to the Company Secretary or email at
investors@medicaps.com.

Pursuant to Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year, none of the directors of the
Company received any commission from the company nor received any remuneration or commission from the wholly owned
subsidiary company. However, No Director was disqualified for receiving any remuneration or commission from the
Company/Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company during the period under review.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your company has complied with the corporate governance requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34
(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations. A detailed report on Corporate Governance confirming compliance
with the conditions of the Corporate Governance, forms part of the Annual Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under SEBI Listing Regulations, is
presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

DISCLOSURE ON ESTABLISHMENT OF A VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a robust vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy approved and adopted by Board of Directors of
the Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Policy also provides adequate protection to the Directors and employees who report
unethical practices and irregularities from any victimization on raising of concerns of any violations of legal or regulatory
requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation of any financial statements and reports, etc. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower Policy of the Company can be accessed on the Company’s website at the whistle-blower-policy.pdf (medicaps.com)

During the year under review no protected disclosure from any Whistle Blower was received by the designated

officer under the Vigil Mechanism.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Board has appointed L.N. Joshi & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries (PCS Registration No. 4216) as the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25.

Further, pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors appointed Joshi
Sahay and Company, Company Secretaries, Indore (Unique Code Number: P2025MP322400 and Peer Review Certificate
No.: 6873/2025) as the Secretarial Auditors of your Company subject to approval of members in ensuing 42" Annual General
Meeting ("AGM") for the period of five consecutive financial year starting from 2025-26 to 2029-30 at such remuneration as
shall be fixed by the Board/Committee. Your Company has received their written consent that the appointment is in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. The Secretarial Auditors have confirmed
that they are not disqualified to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of your Company for the audit of five consecutive
financial year i.e. from 2025-26 to 2029-30.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Report of the Secretarial Auditor for the year 2024-25 is annexed herewith as “ANNEXURE-C” and forms an integral
part of this report.

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in Secretarial Audit report except the following:

Secretarial Auditor Observations Management comments

There are 3 (Three) charges which were satisfied long back
but no evidence of the satisfaction was produced before me
and these charges are shown in the Index of Charges at the

The matter is very old, and the company is in continuous
follow up with the ROC for deletion of the charge ID,
however, in absence of the adequate evidence for filing of the

26.

portal of MCA. Form-17 /CHG-4 (under the Companies Act, 1956), these

charges could not be removed from MCA Portal.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT OF MATERIAL UNLISTED WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Medgel Private Limited, a material wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, undertakes Secretarial Audit under Section 204
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Audit of Medgel Private Limited for the Financial Year 2024-25 was carried out
pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The
Secretarial Audit Report of Medgel Private Limited submitted by L.N. Joshi & Company, Company Secretaries is annexed as

ANNEXURE-D and forms an integral part of this Report.
27. ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
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28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2024-25 for all applicable compliances as per SEBI Regulations
and Circulars/ Guidelines issued there under. Pursuant to provision of Regulation 24A, the Annual Secretarial Compliance
Report for the financial year 2024-25 has been submitted to the stock exchange within the prescribed time.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Rawka & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 021606C), were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company in
the 39" Annual General Meeting held on 28" September 2022, for another term of five consecutive years from the conclusion
of 39" Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 44" Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year
2026-27.

The Auditor’s Report and the notes on financial statement for the year 2024-25 referred to in the Auditor’s Report

are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

DISCLOSURE FOR FRAUDS AGAINST THE COMPANY

There were no instances for other than reportable fraud to the Central Government covered under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Auditors have not found any fraud as required to be reported by them under Section
143(12) to the Central Government during the year 2024-25.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 23 May 2024 on the recommendation of Audit Committee approved the
appointment of Praveen Shrivastava & Company, Chartered Accountant, as an Internal Auditor of the Company for the
financial year 2024-25.

Further during the financial year 2024-25, the Company took their suggestions and recommendations to improve
and strengthen the internal control systems. Their scope of work includes review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of
systems and processes, compliances and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas.

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment and
monitors the implementation of audit recommendations including those relating to strengthening of the Company’s risk
management policies and systems.

COST AUDITOR AND RECORDS

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, amended
time to time, the provision regarding Cost Audit and Records was not applicable to the Company during the year 2024-25.
MD/CFO CERTIFICATE

The Managing Director and CFO of your Company have issued the necessary certificate pursuant to the provisions of
Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the same forms part of this Annual Report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Pursuant to Regulation 17 (5) of the SEBI Listing Regulations requires listed companies to lay down a Code of Conduct for its
Directors and senior management, incorporating duties of Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The Company
has adopted Code of Conduct for all Directors and Senior Management of the Company and the same has been hosted on the
website of the Company at http://medicaps.com/upload/code-of-conduct-PIT.pdf.

Al Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 2024-25. Declaration
on adherence to the code of conduct is forming part of the Corporate Governance Report.

STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has its Risk Management Policy which is reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit
Committee of the Company from time to time so that management controls the risk through a structured network. The main
objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a proactive approach in
reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objectives, the policy
establishes a structured and methodical approach to risk management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues. The
Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The major risks identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Board is entrusted
with the task of monitoring and reviewing the Risk Management Plan and procedures of the Company. This acts as a
supplement to the Internal Control Mechanism and Audit function of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have occurred between
the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this Board’s report.

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

Safety is your company’s topmost priority with primary focus on developing a safety culture among employees. Your
Company’s policy requires conduct of operations in such a manner, to ensure safety of all concerned compliances,
environmental regulations and preservation of natural resources.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to
redress the Complaint received regarding sexual harassment. Further the Company has complied with provisions relating to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this
Policy. The status of the complaints filed, disposed of and pending during the financial year 2024-25 is given below: -

S. N. Particulars No. of Complaints
a Number of Complaints of Sexual Harassment received in the year Nil
b Number of Complaints disposed during the year Nil
c Number of cases pending for more than ninety days Nil
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37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

LISTING OF SHARES WITH STOCK EXCHANGE
The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited, and the Company is regular in payment of the Listing Fees. There was no
suspension of trading during the year under review.
INSURANCE
The Company’s movable assets are adequately insured against the risk, as consider necessary by the Management from time to
time.
DEPOSITORY SYSTEM
Your Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form and your Company has connectivity with both the
Depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). In
view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository System, members are requested to avail of the facility of
Dematerialization of the Company’s shares on either of the Depositories mentioned as aforesaid.
COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India as amended from time to time and approved by the Central Government under Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013.
SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
WHICH IMPACT THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE.
There is no significant material orders passed by the Regulators which would impact the going concern status of the Company
and its future operations.
DESIGNATED PERSON FOR THE PURPOSE OF DECLARATION OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY: :
Pursuant to provision of Rule 9 (4) of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by MCA vide
Notification dated 27th October, 2023, every Company required to designate a person who shall be responsible for furnishing,
and extending co-operation for providing, information to the Registrar or any other authorized officer with respect to beneficial
interest in shares of the company.

Accordingly, the Company has appointed Mr. Abhishek Jain (ACS: 36699), Company Secretary of the Company,
as Designated Person for the purpose of declaration of beneficial interest in the shares of the Company.
OTHER DISCLOSURES:
Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions/events on these items during the year under review:

»  The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

> As on 31t March 2025, none of the Directors of the company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the
Company.

»  There was no change in capital structure of the Company. Further the Company has not issued any Shares (including
Sweat Equity Shares) to employees of the Company under any Scheme and not made any Stock Option Schemes.

» Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares for the subscription/purchase of
which loan was given by the Company (as there is no scheme pursuant to which such persons can beneficially hold
shares as envisaged under Section 67(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013).

»  There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company.

» The Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report on the environmental, social and governance disclosures, as
required under Regulation 34 (2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, is not applicable to your Company for the financial
year ending 31% March 2025.

»  No application was made, or any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the
year in respect of your Company.

»  There was no one time settlement of loan obtained from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

»  There was no revision of financial statements and Board's Report of the Company during the year under review.

»  Since the total number of employees of the Company is below the prescribed threshold, the provisions of the Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961 are not applicable to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION
Your directors thank and acknowledge the continuous co-operation and assistance extended by all the stakeholders, our
employees and the various customers.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PLACE: INDORE FOR MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

RAMESH CHANDRA MITTAL ALOK K. GARG
CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00035272 DIN: 00274321
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“ANNEXURE - A”

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs)

S. No. Particulars Details

1 Corporate identity number (CIN) U24239MP2007PTC019204

2 Name of the Subsidiary Medgel Private Limited

3 The date since when subsidiary was acquired 17" October, 2011

4 Provisions pursuant to which the company has become a Section 2 (87) (ii)
subsidiary [Section 2 (87) (i) /Section 2 (87) (ii)]

5 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from Same as of Holding Company
the holding company’s reporting period (01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025)

6 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the | NA (there is no foreign subsidiary)
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.

7 Share capital 1468.20
8 Reserves and surplus 5393.27
9 Total assets 7207.87
10 Total Liabilities 346.40
11 Investments 3006.07
12 Turnover 2300.08
13 Profit/Loss before taxation -112.61
14 Provision for taxation 0.00
15 Profit/Loss after taxation -112.61
16 Proposed Dividend 0
17 % of shareholding 100%

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations " N.A.

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year " N.A.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
Joint Ventures
(Not Applicable to the company as company not having any associates and not entered into any joint
venture with any entity)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE,

RAWKA & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REG. NO.: 021606C

VENUS RAWKA RAMESH CHANDRA MITTAL ALOK K GARG

PARTNER CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR

M.N.429040 DIN: 00035272 DIN: 00274321

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025 HEMANT SETHI ABHISHEK JAIN

PLACE: INDORE C.F.O. COMPANY SECRETARY
M.N: A36699
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“ANNEXURE B”
Particulars of Employees
[Statement as per Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

A. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for
the financial year:

S. . . . Ratio of remuneration of Director to median
Name of Directors Designation -
No. remuneration of employees

1. | Mr. Alok K. Garg Managing Director 10.05:1

B. The percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, CFO, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary
or Manager in the financial year 2024-25 is as follows:

S. No. Name of Person Designation % increase in remuneration
1. Mr. Alok K Garg Managing Director No Change
2. Mr. Hemant Sethi Chief Financial Officer 29.43%
3. Mr. Abhishek Jain Company Secretary 06.21%

Further, percentage increase in Remuneration of Non-executives Directors doesn’t apply as no remuneration/ sitting
fee/commission is paid to them.

C. the percentage increase in the median remuneration of all employees in the financial year: 37.95%
D. The number of permanent employees on the Roll of the Company as on 315 March, 2025: 9 (Nine)

E. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

There was average percentile increase of 105.83% in salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year. Further, there was no percentage increase in remuneration of managerial personnel in financial year therefore
no justifications are required to be disclosed.

F. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:
The Board affirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST, 2025 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
PLACE: INDORE

RAMESH CHANDRA MITTAL ALOK K. GARG
CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00035272 DIN: 00274321
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“ANNEXURE - C”

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231
Registered Office:

201, Pushpratna Paradise,

9/5 New Palasiya, Indore, (M.P.) 452001

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MEDI-CAPS LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 1%t April 2024
to 31% March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by MEDI-CAPS
LIMITED for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the company during the audit

period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.
(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (not
applicable to the company during the audit period).

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (not
applicable to the company during the audit period).

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (not
applicable to the company during the audit period).

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client.

(9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (not applicable to the company
during the audit period).

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the company
during the audit period).

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended
from time to time.

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.
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(vi) I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, laws and Regulations to the Company on test check basis. The
management of the Company confirmed that the Company has entered into real estate business and has discontinued the
manufacturing activities of pharmaceuticals business. Therefore, the laws, regulations, directions, orders applicable specifically
to the Company is Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards on Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1)
and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2), issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

I further report that | have not reviewed the applicable financial laws (direct and indirect tax laws), Accounting Standards, since
the same have been subject to review and audit by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observation:

There are 3 (Three) charges which were satisfied long back but no evidence for the satisfaction were produced before me and
these charges are showing in the Index of Charges at the portal of MCA.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of Board of Directors that took place during the year under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings
of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the company has not undertaken event/action having major bearing on the

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards etc. referred to above.

For L.N. Joshi & Co.
Company Secretaries

L. N. Joshi
Dated: 05" August, 2025 Proprietor
Place: Indore FCS: 5201; CP No 4216

UDIN: F005201G000902284
Peer Review Certificate No. 1722/2022
Unique Code Number: S2002MP836100

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure herewith and forms integral part of this
report.
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To,

ANNEXURE to Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231
Registered Office:

201, Pushpratna Paradise, 9/5 New Palasiya,
Indore, (M.P.) 452001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For L.N. Joshi & Co.
Company Secretaries
L. N. Joshi

Dated: 05" August, 2025 Proprietor

Place: Indore FCS: 5201; CP No 4216

UDIN: F005201G000902284
Peer Review Certificate No. 1722/2022
Unique Code Number: S2002MP836100
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“ANNEXURE - D”

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORM NO. MR-3
For the Financial Year Ended on 31 March, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015 as amended from time to time]

To,

The Members,

MEDGEL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U24239MP2007PTC019204
(Material Subsidiary of Medi-Caps Limited)
Registered Office:

201, Pushpratna Paradise

9/5 New Palasiya, Opposite Uco bank
Indore (M.P.) 452001

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MEDGEL PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering 1% April, 2024 to
315t March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by MEDGEL PRIVATE
LIMITED for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.

(ii) Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under; (not applicable to the company during the
audit period)

(iii) Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; (not applicable to the company during the audit
period)

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (not applicable to the company during the audit
period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (not applicable
to the company during the audit period)

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (not applicable to the company
during the audit period)*

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (not applicable to
the company during the audit period)

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (not
applicable to the company during the audit period);

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (not applicable
to the company during the audit period);

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client; (not applicable to the company during the audit period)

(9) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (not applicable to the company
during the audit period);

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the company during
the audit period);
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(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from
time to time. (Applicable to the extent of material wholly owned subsidiary company of Medi-Caps Limited)

*The Company being a material wholly owned subsidiary of Medi-Caps Limited (Listed Entity), Directors and certain employees of
the Company have been categorized as Designated Persons and are covered by the Code of Conduct under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended, of Medi-Caps Limited.

(vi) I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for
compliances under other applicable Acts, laws and Regulations to the Company on a test check basis. The laws, regulations,
directions, orders applicable specifically to the Company are as follows:

Pharmacy Act, 1948,

Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

Drug Pricing Control Order, 2013

Standard Weight and Measurement Act, 1976

pPONE

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards on Meeting of Board of Directors(SS-1) and
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

| further report that | have not reviewed the applicable financial laws (direct and indirect tax laws), Accounting standard, since the
same have been subject to review and audit by the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period, the company has not undertaken event/action having a major bearing in the company’s
affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred above.

For L.N. Joshi & Co.
Company Secretaries

L. N. Joshi
Dated: 28" July, 2025 Proprietor
Place: Indore FCS: 5201; CP No 4216

UDIN: F005201G000879723
Peer Review Certificate No. 1722/2022
Unique Code Number: S2002MP836100

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure herewith and forms an integral part of this
report.
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To,

ANNEXURE to Secretarial Audit Report

The Members,

MEDGEL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U24239MP2007PTC019204
(Material Subsidiary of Medi-Caps Limited)
Registered Office:

201, Pushpratna Paradise

9/5 New Palasiya, Opposite Uco bank
Indore (M.P.) 452001

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For L.N. Joshi & Co.
Company Secretaries
L. N. Joshi

Dated: 28" July, 2025 Proprietor

Place: Indore FCS: 5201; CP No 4216

UDIN: F005201G000879723
Peer Review Certificate No. 1722/2022
Unique Code Number: S2002MP836100
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

BUSINESS
Medicaps Limited is working in real estate industry with a commitment to quality, transparency and customer satisfaction.
The Company has built a reputation for delivering projects that combine modern design and sustainable practices. Medicaps
aims to create lasting values for clients, investors and communities, shaping skylines and lifestyles for the future.
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
The real estate sector is one of the most globally recognized sectors. It comprises four sub-sectors - housing, retail,
hospitality, and commercial. The growth of this sector is well complemented by the growth in the corporate environment and
the demand for office space as well as urban and semi-urban accommodation. In India, the real estate sector is the second-
highest employment generator, after the agriculture sector. It is also expected that this sector will incur more non-resident
Indian (NRI) investment, both in the short term and the long term. Real estate sector in India is expected to reach US$ 1
trillion in market size by 2030, up from US$ 200 billion in 2021 and contribute 13% to the country’s GDP by 2025. Retail,
hospitality, and commercial real estate are also growing significantly, providing the much-needed infrastructure for India's
growing needs.
The Indian real estate market is projected to experience a substantial increase, potentially reaching a value of US$ 5-7
trillion by the year 2047, with the possibility of surpassing US$ 10 trillion.
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
The real estate market in Madhya Pradesh presents various opportunities, including residential, commercial, and industrial
property development, driven by factors like urbanization, infrastructure growth, and a growing population. Specific
opportunities exist in Indore, Bhopal, Jabalpur, and Gwalior, with increasing demand for affordable housing, commercial
spaces, and plotted developments. As a major commercial and educational hub, Indore experiences high demand for
residential and commercial properties. The growth of various sectors, including manufacturing, IT, and tourism, is driving
the demand for commercial and residential properties & The state government's supportive policies and initiatives for the
real estate sector are encouraging investment and development. On the other hand, the real estate industry in Madhya
Pradesh is also having few threats like Uneven Development, need of Streamlining Processes, stability etc.
RISKS AND CONCERNS
The real estate industry in Madhya Pradesh faces several risks and concerns, including financial challenges, regulatory
hurdles, and market volatility. These challenges can impact both developers and investors, potentially leading to project
delays, increased costs, and decreased property values. Various factors such as a sharp increase in stamp duty charges,
Oversupply, Market Volatility, Shifting Demographics and Work Patterns & Competition, may have an adverse effect on the
industry.
FUTURE OUTLOOK: PROJECT STATUS AND PLANNING
After entering in the real estate industry, the company has also completed its first project but due to Market Volatility and
few other factors, it did not gain the expected response in this financial year. Further despite the anticipated challenges, the
management is looking forward to leveraging valuable opportunities by prioritizing Customer needs and cost effectiveness.
SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE
On standalone basis company is having real estate segment only while, on consolidated basis Company have two reportable
segments i.e. real estate in parent company and pharma division in wholly owned subsidiary. Further segment performance
is given in note no. 25 of consolidated financial statement.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has an adequate internal control system in place. Sufficient controls, processes, and policies have been framed
to ensure the proper handling and management of its assets & compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The
Company has also in place the Internal Financial Control (IFC) framework, as per Companies Act, 2013.
MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES
Efforts are made to improve performance, providing work satisfaction and performance-based increments, safety and social
status. Industrial relations remained cordial at all organizational levels and workplaces. The Company makes regular efforts
to maintain relation with Stakeholders by transparency, good governance, regular communication and effective transactions.
DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Financial and Operational performance forms are part of the Board Report separately.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Ratios FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24 | Change Explanation

Current Ratio (in times) 81.65 18.63 | 338.29% | The Increase in ratio is because of decrease in current Liabilities.

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times)
Debt-Service Coverage Ratio
Interest Coverage Ratio - - -] -
Return on Equity Ratio (in times) 0.0083 0.0609 | -86.38% | The Decrease in ratio is because of significant change in the profit for the year.

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 0.15 0.76 | -79.67% | The Decrease and change in ratio is because of change in conversion of more
inventory to sale during the year.

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times) 0.58 2.08 | -72.05% | The Decrease in ratio is because of significant change in the profit for the year.

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in times) - - -1 -
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 0.11 0.35 | -68.08% | The Decrease in ratio is because of significant change in the Turnover for the

year which lead to change in profit for the year.

Net Profit Ratio (in %) 11.79% 67.37% | -82.49% | The Decrease in ratio is because of significant change in the turnover for the
year.

Return On Capital Employed 0.004 0.075 | -94.32% | The Decrease in ratio is because of significant change in the Turnover for the
year which lead to change in profit for the year.

Return on Investment 0.007 0.003 | 124.22% | The increase in ratio is because of realisation of Investment during the year.

Operating Profit Ratio 96.54% 99.15% | -2.63% | -

Price to Sales Ratio 25.74 7.49 | 243.56% | The Increase in ratio is because of decline in sales during the year, while

company's market capitalisation remained relatively stable
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ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

The Company is committed to complying with the statutory requirements related to environment, health, safety and to
preventing pollution through continuous improvement in processes, practices and EHS awareness. Your Company not only
cares for compliances aspect but also contributes towards society health, safety and green environment.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report, describing the Company’s objectives, estimates and
expectations, may constitute ‘Forward Looking Statements within the meaning of applicable laws or regulations. Actual
results might differ materially from those either  expressed or implied.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(As per Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V(c) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

This Corporate Governance Report relating to the year ended on March 31, 2025, has been issued in compliance with the
applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations™) and amendment thereof and forms a part of the Report of the Board of Directors of the Medi-Caps Limited
(“the Company™).

To comply with Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the report containing the details of
Corporate Governance of the Medi-Caps Limited (“the Company”) is as follows:

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and ethical business conduct. Timely and accurate disclosure of
information regarding the financial situation, performance, ownership and management of the Company is an important part
of Corporate Governance. Corporate Governance philosophy stems from our belief that corporate governance is a key
element in improving efficiency, growth enhancing investor confidence and return to the shareholders. The Company has
always been committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance. Your Company is not only in compliance with the
requirements stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations™) as amended from time to time, with regard to Corporate Governance, but is also committed to sound
Corporate Governance principles and practice and constantly strives to adopt emerging best Corporate Governance practices
being followed worldwide. The details of compliance are as follows:

THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE:

Medi-Caps Limited’s governance structure is based on the principles of freedom to the executive management within a given
framework to ensure that the powers vested in the executive management are exercised with due care and responsibility so as
to meet the expectation of all the stakeholders. Company continuously endeavors to improve transparency, integrity and
accountability. In line with these principles, the Company has formed three tiers of Corporate Governance structure, viz:

(i) The Board of Directors: The primary role of the Board is to protect the interest and enhance value for all the
stakeholders. It conducts overall strategic supervision and control by setting the goals and targets, policies, practices,
governance standards, reporting mechanism and accountability and decision-making process to be followed.

(if) Committees of Directors: There are various committees of Directors such as Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, which are focused on financial reporting, audit and
internal controls, compliance issues, appointment and remuneration of Directors, Auditors, investor grievance redress and
Senior Management Employees, Risk Management framework and Corporate Governance compliance.

(iii) Executive Management: The entire business, including the support services, are managed with clearly demarcated
responsibilities and authorities at different levels.

Managing Director: The Managing Director is responsible for achieving the Company’s vision and mission, business
strategies, project execution, mergers and acquisition, significant policy decisions and all the critical issues having
significant business and financial implications. He is also responsible for the overall performance and growth of the
Company and ensures implementation of the various rules and regulations including the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the decisions of the Board of Directors and its various Committees. He reports to the Board
of Directors for any non-compliance.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS (“Board”)

A. Board composition and category of directors

The Board of Directors along with its committees provides leadership and guidance to the Company's management and
directs, supervises and controls the performance of the Company. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix
of professionalism, knowledge, and experience and enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective
leadership to the business. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") including the rules framed there under and Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations (as
amended from time to time).

As on 315t March 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 6 (Six) Directors, of which 1 (one) is
Executive Director, 2 (Two) are Promoter Non- Executive Director and 3 (Three) are Non-Executive Independent Directors.
The Management of the Company is headed by Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal, Non-executive and Non Independent
Chairman of the Company, who operates under the supervision and control of the Board. The Board consists of a balanced
combination of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The Board of Directors periodically reviews Letter of Assurance to strengthen the legal framework step by step to
ensure compliance with all the applicable Laws pursuant to Regulation 17(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors has its own plan on orderly succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and
Senior Management pursuant to Regulation 17(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in
compliance with the Companies Act, 2013. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as
mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act. None of the
Director is a Director in more than 10 public limited companies (as specified in Section 165 of the Act) or acts as an
Independent Director in more than 7 listed companies or 3 listed companies in case he/she serves as a Whole-time
Director/MD in any listed company (as specified in Regulation 17A of the SEBI Listing Regulations). Further, none of the
Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees (as specified in
Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations), across all the Indian public limited companies in which he/she is a director.
The name and categories of Directors, DIN, the number of Directorships, Committee positions held by them in the
companies and the list of listed entities where he/she is a director along with the category of their Directorships and other
details are given hereafter:
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Number of Directorshi NI G IS
: ; . P Chairmanship/Membership
. including Medi-Caps ) . .
Name of Directors Category Limited including Medi-Caps
Limited*
Chairman Member Chairman Member
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Promoter/ Non-Exec_:utlve
. Non-Independent Director

Mittal (Chairman of the Board and 2 6 0 0
(DIN: 00035272)

Company)

Promoter/ Executive
Mr. Alok K Garg . -
(DIN: 00274321) D!rector (Managing 0 2 0 0

Director)
Mrs. Kusum Mittal Promoter, Non-Executive 0 1 0 0
(DIN: 00035356) Woman Director
Mr. Ashok Omprakash .
Agrawal g?rr;-;g(recutlve Independent 0 2 2 2
(DIN: 07870578)
Mr. Dharmendra -
Solanki g?rr;-;g(recutlve Independent 0 1 0 2
(DIN: 09055239)
Mr. Gajendra Singh Non-Executive - 0 1 0 2
(DIN: 10253991) Independent Director

*Committee considered as Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, including that of your Company.
Committee membership(s) and Chairmanship(s) are counted separately.

B. Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during 2024-25 and the last Annual General Meeting held on
26™ September 2024:

During F.Y. 2024-25, Four (4) Board meetings were held respectively on 23 May 2024, 07" August 2024, 12 November
2024 and 12" February 2025. The necessary quorum was present in all Board meetings.

The Board Meeting is conducted at least once in every quarter to discuss the performance of the Company and its quarterly
Financial Results, along with other Company issues. The Board met at least once in every calendar quarter and the maximum
gap between any two Meetings did not exceed 120 days. Further, the Company has adopted and adhered to the Secretarial
Standards prescribed by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government.

The attendance of each Director at the meeting of the Board of Directors and the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company are given below:

Meetings held : Attendance at
Name of Directors Category during the tenure e s (5734 1)
of the Director Attended held on 26t
September, 2024
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal Promoter, Chairman and Non- 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 00035272) Executive Director
Mr. Alok K Garg Promoter and Executive 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 00274321) Director, MD
Mrs. Kusum Mittal Promoter, Non-Executive 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 00035356) Woman Director
Mr. Pramod Fatehpuria* Independent/ Non-Executive 1 1 NA
(DIN: 00972389) Director
Mr. Ashok Omprakash .
Agrawal glic:zgfgrdent/ Non- Executive 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 07870578)
Mr. Dharmendra Solanki Independent/ Non-Executive 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 09055239) Director
Mr. Gajendra Singh Independent/ Non-Executive 4 4 Yes
(DIN: 10253991) Director

*Second and final term of Mr. Pramod Fatehpuria (DIN: 00972389) as an independent director has been completed
consequently, he retired from the directorship of the company w.e.f. the close of business hours on 28" May 2024.
C. Details of Directorship(s) held by the Directors on the Board in other Listed Companies as on 31.03.2025:
None of the Director is holding directorship in any other listed Company.
D. Board procedure
The Board of Directors of the Company plays a primary role in ensuring good governance and functioning of the Company.
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s business policy and strategy apart from other
normal businesses. The detailed Agenda together with the relevant notes to agendas is circulated to the Directors in advance
at least seven days before the date of the Board Meeting(s) and of the Committee Meeting(s) except where Meetings have
been convened at a shorter notice to transact urgent business, to enable the Board /Committees to discharge its
responsibilities effectively and take informed decisions. Where it is not practicable to attach or send the relevant information
as a part of agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting or/ and the presentations are made by the concerned managers
to the Board, subject to compliance with legal requirements. Considerable time is spent by the Directors on discussions and
deliberations at the Board / Committee Meetings.

The Board also, inter alia, periodically reviews business plans, annual operating and capital expenditure budget(s),
investment and exposure limit(s), compliance report(s) of all laws applicable to your Company, as well as steps taken by
your Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, review of major legal issues, minutes of the Committees of the
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Board, approval of quarterly/half-yearly/annual results, transactions pertaining to purchase/ disposal of property(ies), major
accounting provisions and write-offs, material default in financial obligations, if any and information on recruitment of
Senior Officers just below the Board level etc.

The Board sets annual performance objectives, oversees the actions and results of the management, evaluates its
own performance, performance of its committees and individual Directors on an annual basis and monitors the effectiveness
of the Company's governance practices for enhancing the stakeholders' value.

The Company has a well-established framework for the Meetings of the Board and its Committees which seeks to
systematize the decision-making process at the Meetings in an informed and efficient manner.

Apart from Board members and the Company Secretary, the Board and Committee Meetings are generally also attended by
the Chief Financial Officer and wherever required the heads of various corporate functions.

E. Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se:

Name of Directors Relationship Name of other Directors in inter-se relationship
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal Husband Mrs. Kusum Mittal (Promoter and Non-Executive Director)
(DIN: 00035272) Father-in-Law Mr. Alok K Garg (Promoter and Managing Director)

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal (Chairman, Promoter and Non-

Mr. Alok K Garg

(DIN: 00274321) Son in law Executive Director) and Mrs. Kusum Mittal (Promoter and

Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal (Chairman, Promoter and Non-

Mrs. Kusum Mittal Wife Executive Director)

(DIN: 00035356)

Mother-in-law Mr. Alok K Garg (Promoter and Managing Director)

F. Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 315t March 2025

S. No. Name of Directors No. of Equity Shares Convertible Instruments*

1 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal .
(DIN: 00035272) 10,000 Nil

2 Mrs. Kusum Mittal :
(DIN: 00035356) 12,000 Nil

3 Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal Nil Nil
(DIN: 07870578)

4 Mr. Dharmendra Solanki Nil Nil
(DIN: 09055239)

5 Mr. Gajendra Singh Nil Nil
(DIN: 10253991)

*The Company had not issued any convertible instrument till date.
G. The details and web link of Familiarization Programs imparted to Independent Directors:
Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company conducts familiarization programmes for its
directors from time to time. All new Independent Directors, inducted on the Board, are given a letter of appointment setting
out their roles, functions, duties and responsibilities. The Directors are familiar with your Company's Business and its
operations. Interactions are held between the Directors and Senior Management of your Company. Directors are familiarized
with organizational set-up, functioning of various departments, internal control processes and relevant information pertaining
to your Company. They are periodically updated on industry scenarios, changes in regulatory framework and the impact
thereof on the working of your Company.
The details on the Company's familiarization programs are available on the website of the Company at the web
link: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Familiarization-policy-2024-25.pdf
H. Matrix of skills/fexpertise/competencies of the Board of Directors
The following is the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context
of the Company’s business and that the said skills are already available with the Board members:
a) Knowledge of the Company’s business (Real Estate Sector), policies and business culture major risks/threats and
potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates.
b) Behavioural skills - attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the
growth of the Company,
c) Business Strategy, Sales and Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, Administration, Decision
Making,
d) Financial and Management skills,
e) Technical / professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business.
These skills/competencies are broad-based, encompassing several areas of expertise/ experience. Each Director may
possess varied combinations of skills/experience within the described set of parameters, and it is not necessary that all
Directors possess all skills/experience listed therein. In the table below, the specific areas of focus or expertise of
individual board members have been highlighted:

Skills to be II\?/Iarr.nesh Mr. Mrs. Mr. Ashok | Mr. Mr.

possessed by Alok K | Kusum Omprakas | Dharmendr | Gajendra
- Chandra - . .

Directors Mittal Garg Mittal h Agrawal | a Solanki Singh

Knowledge on

Company’s

businesses (Real

Estate ~  Secton), | v Yes | Yes - Yes -

policies and business

culture major

risks/threats and

potential

Annual Report 2024- 25 Page | 33


https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Familiarization-policy-2024-25.pdf

opportunities and
knowledge of the
industry in which the
Company operates
Behavioural skills -
attributes and
competencies to use
their knowledge and
skills to contribute
effectively to the
growth of the
Company

Business  Strategy,
Sales and Marketing,
Corporate
Governance, Forex | - Yes Yes Yes - -
Management,
Administration,
Decision Making
Financial and
Management skills
Technical /
Professional  skills
and specialized
knowledge in
relation to
Company’s business
I. Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfills the condition specified in this
regulation and is independent of the Management:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their respective declaration/ disclosures under Section 149(7) of
the Act and Regulation 16 (1)(b) and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Based on the declarations received
from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors confirms that they meet the criteria of Independence as mandated by
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act and that they are independent of the
management. Further, the Independent Directors have included their names in the data bank of Independent Directors
maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014

The Independent Directors under Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations have confirmed that they are not aware
of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to
discharge their duties with an objective, independent judgment and without any external influence.

Further, the Board after taking these declaration/disclosures on record and acknowledging the veracity of the same
concluded that the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience to qualify
as Independent Directors of the Company and are Independent of the Management.

J. Detailed reasons for resignation of the Independent Director who resigns before the expiry of his/her tenure along
with the confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided:
During the year under review, none of the Independent Directors of the Company had resigned before the expiry of their
respective tenure(s). However, during the year, Mr. Pramod Fatehpuria (DIN: 00972389) ceased from the Directorship of the
Company w.e.f. close of business hours on 28" May, 2024 on account of completion of his second and final term as an
independent Director.
3. Meeting of Independent Directors:
Pursuant to the Regulation 25(3) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent
Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a financial year without presence of non-Independent Directors
and members of the Management. Accordingly, meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 12t
February 2025 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of the management inter alia to discuss the
business as required under Regulation 25(4) of SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013:
e Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.
e Review the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and
non-executive directors.
o Assess the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information between the Company’s management and the Board
of Directors that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.
Attendance of Independent Directors in meeting of Independent Directors:

Yes Yes - Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Directors Meetings held QUrlng the tenure Meetings Attended
of Director

Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal 1 1

(DIN: 07870578)

Mr. Dharmendra Solanki 1 1

(DIN: 09055239)

Mr. Gajendra Singh 1 1

(DIN: 10253991)

4. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
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The Company has constituted various Committees for enabling smooth decision-making process in the Company. As on 31%
March 2025, the Company had three statutory board committees namely, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. We have an Independent Chairman in case of all three committee i.e.
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. All decisions
pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference for the
Committee is taken by the Board of Directors. The Committees make specific recommendations to the Board on various
matters whenever required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board
for information or for approval.

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Company has an Independent Audit Committee comprising three Non-Executive Independent Directors. The primary
objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision to the management's financial reporting
process. The Committee oversees and reviews the reports of various auditors of the Company and assesses the quality of
financial reporting in the Company. The Composition, Procedure, Role/ Function of the committee comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as those of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Audit Committee reviews all
applicable mandatory information under Part C of Schedule Il pursuant to Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the following:

(1) Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

(2) Recommendation for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company.

(3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

(4) Reviewing with management, the annual financial statement and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the
Board for approval, with reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board’s Report as per Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.
b. Changes, if any, in the accounting policies and practices and the reasons for the same.
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions.
g. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

(5) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval.

(6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making
appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

(7) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process.

(8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.

(9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

(10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.

(11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

(12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems.

(13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit.

(14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

(15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
board.

(16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

(17) To investigate the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositories, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors.

(18) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

(19) Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background,
etc. of the candidate.

(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

(21) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary
exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans
/ advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision.

(22) Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the Company and its shareholders.

e The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
1) Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations.
2) Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
3) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
4) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the
audit committee.
5) Statement of deviations:
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(a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
in terms of Regulation 32(7).
e Composition and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the financial year
2024-25
During the year under review, the committee met on 04 (four) occasions on following dates namely: 23 May 2024, 071
August 2024, 12" November 2024 and 12" February 2025.

q Meeting held during the] Meeting
PllEatIE L tenure of the Directors | attended
Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal Chairman - Independent Director 4 4
(DIN: 07870578)
Mr. Dharmendra Solanki Member - Independent Director 4 4
(DIN:09055239)
Mr. Gajendra Singh Member - Independent Director 4 4
(DIN: 10253991)

Pursuant to Clause 4.1.1 of Secretarial Standards on General Meeting, the Chairman of the Audit Committee or, in his
absence, any other Member of the Committee authorized by him on his behalf shall attend the General Meeting of the
Company. Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal (DIN: 07870578), Chairman of the Audit Committee, was virtually present at the
last 415t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26 September, 2024 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to address the shareholder’s queries.

All the members of the committee, including committee Chairman are Independent Director. All the members of the
committee are financial literate and possess accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Company Secretary & Compliance officer of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

(B) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
the Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC), comprising three independent directors as its members, inter-alia oversees the Company’s nomination, appointment
and re-appointment process of Directors for the Directors and senior management personnel of the Company including the
Key Managerial Personnel and coordinates the annual self-evaluation of the performance of the Board, Committees and of
individual Directors.

The composition, procedure, role/function of the Committee complies with the requirements of the Companies Act,

2013 as well as SEBI Listing Regulations are given below:
. Brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes the following:

(1) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees.

(2) For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and based on such evaluation, prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for
appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For identifying
suitable candidates, the Committee may:

i. use the services of an external agency, if required;
ii. Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
iii. Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

(3) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors

(4) Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

(5) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in
accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal.

(6) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, based on the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors.

(7) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

. Composition and attendance of members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during the

financial year 2024-25

During the year the committee met on two occasions on the following dates namely: -23™ May 2024 and 7" August, 2024.

Meetings held during Meetings

s el tenure of the Directors attended

Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal

(DIN: 07870578) Chairman - Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Dharmendra Solanki .

(DIN: 09055239) Member - Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Gajendra Singh Member - Independent Director 2 2

(DIN: 10253991)

As per Section 178 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of
the Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the
General Meeting of the Company. The Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal (DIN: 07870578) was
virtually present at the last 415t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26" September, 2024 through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM?”) to answer shareholders’ queries.

All the members of the committee, including committee Chairman are Independent Director.

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.
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¢ Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:
The Company believes that an effective governance framework requires periodic evaluation of the functioning of the Board
as a whole, its committees and individual director's performance evaluation. Keeping this belief in mind, the Company on
the recommendation of the NRC has established the Performance Evaluation criteria for:-
(a) The Board as a whole including its Committees;
(b) Chairman of the Board; and
(c) Individual Directors as required under the Act and provisions of SEBI Listing Regulations. Some of the performance
indicators for such evaluation include:-

1. Attendance at Board Meetings/Committee Meetings.

2. Quality of participation in Meetings.

3. Ability to provide leadership.

4. Commitment to protect/enhance interests of all the stakeholders.

5. Contribution in implementation of best governance practices.

6. Understanding critical issues affecting the Company.

7. Bringing relevant experience to Board and using it effectively.
Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation do not participate.
Feedback was collected through structured questionnaires covering various aspects, in line with the Guidance Note on Board
Evaluation issued by SEBI in its circular dated 5th January 2017. The performance evaluation was carried out based on the
responses received from the Directors. The results of the evaluation were positive, reflecting the overall effectiveness of the
Board and its Committees
* Nomination and Remuneration Policy:
In accordance with Section 178 of the Act, the Committee has framed a Nomination and Remuneration policy and the same
is available on the web link: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Remuneration-Policy.pdf
(C) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of the Board was constituted in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee
(SRC), comprising three independent directors as its members. This Committee deals with stakeholder relations and
grievances raised by the investors in a timely and effective manner and to the satisfaction of investors. The Committee
oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company relating to investor services and
recommends measures for improvement.
e  Brief terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes the following

a. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

b. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

¢. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered
by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

d. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the
company.

e  Composition and Attendance of members at the meetings of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee held

during the financial year 2024-25.

During the year, the Committee met on one occasion on 23 May, 2024.

Meeting held Meetings
Directors Category during the tenure g
. Attended
of the Directors
Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal . .
(DIN: 07870578) Chairman - Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Dharmendra Solanki .
(DIN: 09055239) Member - Independent Director 1 1
Mr. Gajendra Singh i .
(DIN: 10253991) Member - Independent Director 1 1

As per Section 178(7) of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards, the Chairman of the Committee or, in
his absence, any other member of the Committee authorized by him in this behalf shall attend the General Meeting of the
Company. The Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal (DIN: 07870578) was virtually present at the
last 415 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 26" September, 2024 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM?”) to answer shareholders’ queries.

All the members of the committee, including committee Chairman are Independent Director.

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.

Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer:

Mr. Abhishek Jain, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Medi-Caps Limited

201, Pushpratna Paradise, 9/5 New Palasiya,

Opposite, UCO Bank Indore (M.P.) 452001 India

Tel. No.: 0731- 4046321, 0731- 4028148

Fax No.: 0731- 4041435

Email: investors@medicaps.com

Status report of investor queries and complaints for the period from April 1, 2024, to March 31, 2025 is given below:

| S.No. | Particulars | Number of Complaints |
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01 Investor complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil
02 Investor complaints received during the year 1
03 Investor complaints disposed off during the year 1
04 Investor complaints remaining unresolved at the end of the year Nil

SEBI Complaints Redress System (Scores) and Online Dispute Resolution (ODR)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") administers a centralized web-based complaints redress system
(“SCORES”). It enables investors to lodge and follow up complaints and track the status of redressal online on the website at
www.scores.gov.in. It also enables the market intermediaries and listed companies to receive complaints from investors
against them, redress such complaints and report redressal of such complaints. All the activities starting from lodging of a
complaint till its disposal are carried online in an automated environment and the status of every complaint can be viewed
online at any time. The Company has registered itself on SCORES and endeavors to resolve all investor complaints received
through SCORES.

SEBI vide Circular no. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated 31°t July, 2023 (updated as on 4™
August, 2023 vide Circular No. https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/circulars/aug-2023/corrigendum-cum-amendment-to-circular-
dated-july-31-2023-on-online-resolution-of-disputes-in-the-indian-securities-market_74976.html) has specified that a
shareholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance with the listed entity by lodging a complaint directly with the
concerned listed entity and if the grievance is not redressed satisfactorily, the shareholder may, in accordance with the
SCORES guidelines, escalate the same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with the process laid out therein. Only
after exhausting all available options for resolution of the grievance, if the shareholder is not satisfied with the outcome,
he/she/ they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online Dispute Resolution (“ODR”) Portal. Shareholders are
requested to take note of the same.
(D) Risk Management Committee:
The Company is not required to constitute the Risk Management Committee. However, the Company has a well-defined risk
management framework in place. The risk management framework is at various levels across the Company.
(E)Finance Committee
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions if any, Company has
constituted finance committee which comprises three directors.
The brief description of terms of reference of the Finance Committee are:
¢+ To borrow money, if required.
< To invest the surplus funds of the Company.
+«+ To make loans and or to give guarantees or provide securities in respect of loan.
< Any other matter related to accounts / finance / taxation.
Further apart from this Board of the Directors of the Company may exercise its power under Section 179 of the Companies
Act, 2013, wherever necessary.
e Composition and attendance of members at the meetings of the Finance Committee held during the financial year

2024-25 are below:

During the year 01 meeting of the committee was held as on 12" February 2025.

Directors Category Meetings held during the tenure | Meetings Attended
of the Directors

Mr. Ramesh Chandra | Promoter, Chairman and Non- 1 1

Mittal (DIN: 00035272) Executive Director

Mr. Alok K Garg Promoter and Executive Director, 1 1

(DIN: 00274321) MD

Mr. Ashok Omprakash | Independent Director 1 1

Agrawal (DIN:

07870578)

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company is the Secretary of the Committee.
5. PARTICULAR SENIOR MANAGEMENT INCLUDING THE CHANGES THEREIN SINCE THE CLOSE OF
THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR:

Name of Senior Management Personnel Designation Appointment/Resignation/
Change in Designation during the
year

Mr. Rajendra Kumar Sharma Vice President No Change

Mr. Akshit Garg General Manager No Change

Mrs. Saloni Garg Senior Manager No Change

Mr. Abhishek Jain Company Secretary No Change

Mr. Hemant Sethi Chief Financial Officer No Change

6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

e  All pecuniary relationships or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the listed entity:
Non-Executive Directors do not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

e  Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors:
During the year no remuneration or payment made to any Non-Executive Director of the Company.

e Disclosure with respect to remuneration:

S. No. Name of Category Sitting | Salary & Contribution to |Commission| Total
Director Fees Perquisites PF (INRin
(INRin Lakhs) [(INR in Lakhs) Lakhs)
01 Mr. Alok K Garg| Managing 0 84.00 0 0 84.00
Director

e Nositting fees were paid to any Director of the Company during the financial year.
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e  The Company has not granted any bonuses/stock options/pension etc. to any of its directors.

e  Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria: Nil.

e  The Company does not have a service contract with any of its directors. A notice period of a minimum of 30 days has
been fixed for directors. Further, the Company does not pay any severance fee.

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(i) Annual General Meetings (AGM’s):

The details of the last three Annual General Meetings held by the Company are given below:

Financial Date & Time Location* Details of Special Resolution Passed; if any
Year-
No. of AGM
2023-24- 26" September Meeting conducted | 1. Approval for remuneration to Mr. Alok K Garg (DIN:
41 AGM 2024 through  VC /| 00274321), Managing Director of the Company.
at12:30 P.M. OAVM pursuant to | 2. Continuation of Directorship of Mrs. Kusum Mittal
the MCA Circular (DIN: 00035356) as Non-Executive Director of the
Company on attaining the age of 75 (seventy-five) years.
3. Shifting of registered office of the Company outside
local limits of city.
4.Approval for Loan, Guarantee or Investments in excess
of the prescribed limits under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
2022-23— 29" September Meeting conducted | 1. Appointment of Mr. Gajendra Singh (DIN: 10253991)
400 AGM 2023 through  VC /| asa Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company.
at 12:30 P.M. OAVM pursuant to | 2. Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the
the MCA Circular | Company containing regulation in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2013.
2021-22— 28 September Meeting conducted | Appointment of Mr. Sourabh Kumar Shrivas (DIN:
39" AGM 2022 through  VC /| 09692160) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the
at 12:00 P.M. OAVM pursuant to | Company.
the MCA Circular

* Meeting conducted through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) for which purpose the

registered office of the Company was deemed as the venue for the meeting.
(ii) Extra Ordinary General Meetings (EGM): No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting is held during the year.
(iii) Postal Ballot: No resolution was passed by postal ballot during the financial year 2024-25.
None of the businesses proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing of a resolution
through Postal Ballot.
8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It is a process of sharing
information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plans to all stakeholders which promotes management- shareholder relations. The
Company regularly interacts with shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as results announcement,
annual report, Company's website and subject specific communications. The Company promptly discloses all information on
material corporate developments and other events as required under the SEBI Listing Regulations.
Financial Results:
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results are published in widely circulated newspapers such as Free Press
Journal (English) & Choutha Sansar (Hindi) in compliance with Regulation 47 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. These are
not sent individually to the shareholders. The financials result of the Company are submitted to the Stock Exchange
immediately upon approval of the Board of Directors at the meeting within the stipulated time.
Website
In compliance with Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, a separate dedicated section under ‘Investors Relations’
i.e. ‘Disclosure under Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations’ on the Company’s website gives information on
various announcements made by the Company, status of unclaimed dividend, Annual Report, Quarterly/Half-yearly/nine-
months and Annual financial results along with the applicable policies of the Company.

Quarterly Compliance Reports on Corporate Governance and other relevant information of interest to the Investors
are also placed under the Investors Relations Section on the Company’s website i.e. www.medicaps.com. The Board of
Directors has approved a policy for determining materiality of events for the purpose of making disclosure to the stock
exchange. The Chairman & MD,

Compliance Officer and the Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company are empowered to decide
on the materiality of the information for the purpose of making disclosure to the Stock Exchange.

Your Company discloses to the Stock Exchange, all information required to be disclosed under Regulation 30 read
with Part ‘A’ and Part ‘B’ of Schedule III of the SEBI Listing Regulations including material information having a bearing
on the performance/ operations of the Company and other price sensitive information. All information is filed electronically
on the online portal of BSE Limited
9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION.

Thursday, 18" September 2025 at 12:30 P.M. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Video Means (OAVM) for which
purposes the Registered Office of the Company shall be deemed to be venue
for the Meeting.

AGM: Date, Time and Venue

Financial Year The financial year covers the period from 1t April to 31t March.

Financial year reporting for 2025-26:
01%t Quarter ending 30" June 2025
02" Quarter ending 30" September 2025

On or Before 14™ August, 2025
On or Before 14™ November, 2025
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03" Quarter ending 315 December 2025
04™ Quarter ending 31 March, 2026

On or Before 141 February, 2026
Before 30" May, 2026

Dividend Payment Date

No Dividend was recommended by the Board of Directors for Financial Year
ended 31% March, 2025

Listing on Stock Exchange

BSE Limited
25% Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001 (M.H.)

Listing Fees Annual Listing Fees as applicable for the financial year 2025-26 have been
paid to Stock Exchange.

Stock Code 523144

ISIN No. INE442D01010

CIN L70100MP1983PLC002231

Suspension of Securities

Not applicable

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
(For physical and Demat shares)

ANKIT CONSULTANCY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140MP1985PTC003074

SEBI REG. No. INR000000767

Plot No. 60, Electronics Complex, Pardeshipura,
Indore - 452010 (M.P)

Tel.:.0731-4065797, 4065799,

Fax: 0731-4065798

E-mail: investor@ankitonline.com

Web Address: www.ankitonline.com

Share Transfer System

The Company’s share transfer and related operations is operated through its
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) — Ankit Consultancy Private
Limited. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time, transfer, transmission and transposition of
securities shall be affected only in dematerialized form.

Shareholders may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022,
has mandated the Listed Companies to issue securities in demat form only
while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate,
claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/ Exchange of securities
certificate; Sub-division/ Splitting of securities certificate; Consolidation of
securities certificates/folios; Transmission and Transposition. Accordingly,
Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled
and signed Form ISR—4, the format of which is available on the Company’s
website www.medicaps.com and on the website of the Company’s Registrar
and Transfer Agents http://ankitonline.com. After processing the service
request, a letter of confirmation will be issued to the shareholders and shall be
valid for a period of 120 days, within which the shareholder shall make a
request to the Depository Participant for dematerializing those shares. If the
shareholders fail to submit the dematerialization request within 120 days, then
the Company shall credit those shares in the Suspense Escrow Demat account
held by the Company. Shareholders can claim these shares transferred to
Suspense Escrow Demat account on submission of necessary documentation.
Shareholders holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are
requested to kindly get their equity shares converted into demat/ electronic
form to get inherent benefits of dematerialization and also considering that
physical transfer of equity shares/ issuance of equity shares in physical form
have been disallowed by SEBI.

Distribution of shareholding as on
31.03.2025

As per attached Table-1

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

1,20,58,564 shares are dematerialized (as on 31.03.2025) i.e. 96.70% of total
shares viz.; 1,24,69,956 equity shares

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or
any convertible instruments, conversion
date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible
instruments.

Commodity price risk or
exchange risk and hedging activity

foreign

Your Company does not deal in any commodity and hence is not directly
exposed to any commodity price risk. Further, the Company has no foreign
exchange exposure; hence hedging is not required.

Plant Location

As a result of closing its manufacturing unit and launching the 'Medicaps
Business Park' project in the real estate sector, the company is no longer able
to have any manufacturing plants.

Address for
correspondence:

Shareholders’

Registered Office:

201, Pushpratna Paradise, 9/5 New Palasiya, Indore (M.P.)-452001 India
Tel. No.: 0731- 4046321, 0731- 4028148

Fax No.: 0731- 4041435

Email: investors@medicaps.com

List of Credit Ratings

During the year under review your Company has not obtained any Credit
Rating as the same was not applicable to the company.
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10. DISCLOSURES

a.

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests
of listed entity at large:

All transactions entered with related parties under Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations during the year under
review were on an Arm’s Length basis and in the ordinary course of Business. There are no materially significant
related party transactions of the Company which have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.
Further, the particulars of the transaction between the Company and its related parties in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard 24 (IND AS 24) are set out in Note no. 25 of financial statements forming part of the Annual
Report 2024-25. As per the Regulation 23(9) of SEBI Listing Regulations, Company has filed disclosure of Related
Party Transaction with BSE Limited within prescribed time limit in the format specified by the Board from time to
time.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI, or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three
years:

There has been no non-compliance by the Company and no penalty or strictures imposed on the Company by SEBI or
any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

However, during the financial year 2023-24, BSE Limited vide their email dated 14.12.2023 imposed fine of
Rs.5900/-as per SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 (Chapter VII(A)-Penal
Action for Non-Compliance) for failure to submit disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis
within the prescribed timeframe in pursuance of Regulation 23(9) of SEBI Listing Regulations for the half year
ended September 30, 2023, the Company had paid the fine on 21st December 2023

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel has been
denied access to the Audit Committee:

In accordance with Regulations 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy and
has established a Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud and any wrongdoing or unethical or improper practice. The Company affirms that no personnel have
been denied access to the Audit Committee under the Vigil Mechanism. The Company is committed to the high
standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholders’ responsibility. Details of Whistle Blower Policy are provided in
the Board’s Report section of this Annual Report and also made available on the Company’s website at
https://medicaps.com/upload/whistle-blower-policy.pdf

Details of compliance with mandatory requirement and adoption of non-mandatory requirement:

Your Company has complied with all the applicable requirements of Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) and (t) of
sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, the Company has also
adopted the non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Regulation 27(1) read with Part-E of Schedule Il of SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015.

Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries

Your Company has formulated a Policy for Determining ‘Material’ Subsidiaries as defined in Regulation 16(1)(c) of
the SEBI Listing Regulations. The objective of this policy is to lay down criteria for identification and dealing with
material subsidiaries and to formulate a governance framework for subsidiaries of the Company. This Policy has also
been posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed through web-link: https://medicaps.com/upload/Policy-
for-determining-Material-Subsidiary-f.pdf

web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

Your Company has formulated a Policy on Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions which specifies
the manner of entering related party transactions. This Policy has also been posted on the website of the Company and
can be accessed through web link: https://medicaps.com/upload/RPT_Policy Medicaps.pdf

Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging activities:

Your Company does not deal in any commodity and hence is not directly exposed to any commodity price risk. Further,
the Company has no foreign exchange exposure; hence hedging is not required.

Funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32
(7A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

During the year under review, the Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

A Certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the Board of the Company has
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of Companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such authority.

As required under Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained a certificate from
CS L. N. Joshi (FCS: 5201 and CP No. 4216), Proprietor of L.N. Joshi & Co., Company Secretary in Practice,
certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority.

Disclosure on acceptance of recommendations made by the committees to the board of directors

During the financial year under review various recommendations were made by the Committees to the Board of
Directors, which were all accepted by the Board, after necessary deliberations.

Fees paid to Statutory Auditor

(INR in Lakhs)

Type of Services Medi-Caps Limited Medgel Private Limited Total
for Financial Year (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of

ended 31.03.2025 the Medi-caps Limited)

Audit Fees 0.30 2.50 2.80
Tax Fees 0.00 0.50 0.50
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Others 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.30 3.00 3.30

I.  Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:
In compliance with Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the
Board has constituted an Internal Committee and Mrs. Kusum Mittal is the Chairperson of the Committee. As there was
no reference to the Committee, no meeting was required to be held during the year 2024-25.
The Company has formulated a Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace to ensure prevention,
prohibition and protection against sexual harassment. The policy provides the guidelines for reporting of such
harassment and the procedure for resolution & redressal of the complaints of such nature.
The status of the complaints filed, disposed off and pending during the financial year 2024-25 is given below:

S. No. Particulars No. of Complaints
a Number of Complaints filed during the financial year. Nil
b Number of Complaints disposed during the financial year. Nil
c Number of Complaints pending on end of financial year. Nil

m. Disclosure by Company and its Subsidiary for loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in
which directors are interested by name and amount:

The Company and its subsidiary have not made any Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in

which directors are interested during the FY 2024-25.

n. Details of Subsidiary Company

Regulation 16(1)(c) of the SEBI Listing Regulations defines a “material subsidiary” mean a subsidiary, whose turnover

or net worth exceeds ten percent of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its

subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accounting year. Under this definition the Company has one unlisted material
wholly owned subsidiary viz: Medgel Private Limited.

The subsidiary of the Company functions independently, with an adequately empowered Board of Directors and
adequate resources. The minutes of the Board Meetings of the subsidiary company are placed before the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis. The financial statements of the subsidiary company are presented to the Audit
Committee at every quarterly meeting. The Company has also complied with other requirements of Regulation 24 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations regarding Corporate Governance requirements for Subsidiary Company. Further as per
provision of Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, secretarial audit report for material subsidiary has also been
undertaken and annexed with this Annual Report.

The SEBI Listing Regulations mandates the appointment of at least one independent director of the listed parent
company on the Board of unlisted material subsidiary companies in India. In compliance with the aforesaid provision,
Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal (DIN: 07870578), Independent Directors have been appointed in Medgel Private
Limited (Unlisted Material wholly owned subsidiary Company).

Disclosure requirements with respect to Material Subsidiaries of the Company

The Company have one unlisted material wholly owned subsidiary Company viz; Medgel Private Limited, incorporated

in India as on 10" January 2007. Further Rawka & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Registration No. 021606C)

is statutory auditor of the Company who was re-appointed in Annual General Meeting held on 27" September, 2022 as

the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years to hold office from conclusion of 151

Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of 20" Annual General Meeting (AGM to be held for financial year

ended 2026-27).

11. NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT OF SUB-
PARAS (2) TO (10) OF PART C OF SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS, WITH REASONS
THEREOF

Non-Applicable, since Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to
(10) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations.

12. DISCLOSURE FOR THE DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE
Il HAVE BEEN ADOPTED: -

The Company has fulfilled the following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed in Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of
Schedule Il of SEBI Listing Regulations.

e The Board:

(i) Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal (Promoter/Non-Executive Director) was appointed as Chairman of the Board and

Company. Further, no reimbursement of expenses was given to the Chairman for performing his duties.

(if) Company has not ranked from 1001 to 2000 as per the list prepared by BSE in terms of sub-regulation (2) of

Regulation 3 therefore there was no need to appoint woman independent director on its Board of Director.

e Shareholders’ Rights: As the extract of quarterly, half yearly, financial performance and summary of significant
events in last six months are published in the newspapers and is also posted on the Company’s website, the same
are not mailed to the shareholders.

e Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report: During the year under review, the Auditors have provided an unmodified
audit opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

e  Separate Posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer: Mr. Ramesh
Chandra Mittal, who is a promoter and non-executive director, has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board
and Company and he is also related to the Managing Director of the Company. Furthermore, Mr. Alok K. Garg
holds the position of Managing Director of the Company, but no one is holding the position of Chief Executive
Officer in the Company.

e Reporting of Internal Auditor: In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee. Quarterly internal audit
reports are submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews the audit reports and suggests necessary action.
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e Independent Director: Company has not ranked under top 2000 listed company as per market capitalization list
prepared by BSE. Therefore, there was no requirement to hold two meetings of Independent Directors. However,
pursuant to the Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a financial year without presence of
non-independent directors and members of the Management. Accordingly, during the year under review, the
Independent Directors of the Company met on 121" February, 2025 without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and members of the management inter alia to discuss the business as required under Regulation 25(4) of
SEBI Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013.

e Risk Management: Company has not ranked from 1001 to 2000 listed company as per market capitalization list
prepared by BSE in terms of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 3. Therefore, there was no requirement to constitute a
risk management committee.

13. DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS
The Company has complied all the Corporate Governance requirements as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to
(i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
Further Company has submitted quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance with the Stock Exchanges in
prescribed format, in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 27(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
14. MD & CFO CERTIFICATION
The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company gives annual certification on financial reporting and
internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
A copy of such a certificate is annexed with this report. The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also
provided quarterly certification on financial results to the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2)(a) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.
15. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has obtained a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI Listing
Regulations and the same is annexed with this report.
16. DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
The Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account.
17. DISCLOSURE ON CERTAIN TYPE OF AGREEMENTS BINDING ON LISTED ENTITIES
Pursuant to Regulation 30A of the Listing Regulations, no agreement has been entered or executed by the shareholders,
promoters, promoter group entities, related parties, directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the Company
during the financial year which impact the management control.
18. OTHER INFORMATION
a) Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues and Qualified Institutions Placement etc.: -
The Company has not raised any money through issue of Securities by means of Public Issue, Rights Issue, Qualified
Institutions Placement etc. during the financial year ended 31 March 2025
b) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements
The Company adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) from 1%t April 2017. Accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.
¢) Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices
The Company has formulated and adopted the ‘Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information” which, inter alia, includes Policy for determination of “Legitimate Purpose” and ‘Code
of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in Securities of Medi-caps Limited in compliance with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“the Regulations™). This code has
been available on the Company’s website at: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/code-of-conduct-PIT.pdf
The Company’s Code of Conduct has been formulated to regulate, monitor and ensure reporting of trading by the
Designated Persons and their immediate relatives towards achieving compliance with the Regulations and is
designed to maintain the highest ethical standards of trading in Securities of the Company by persons to whom it is
applicable. The Code lays down Guidelines, which advise them on procedures to be followed and disclosures to be
made, while dealing with securities of the Company and cautions them of the consequences of violations. During the
year under review, the Company’s Code of Conduct was amended in line with the amendments brought in the
Regulations by SEBI.
d) Management Discussion and Analysis
The Management Discussion and Analysis is a part of the Annual report and annexed separately.
e) Disclosure regarding re-appointment/retire by rotation of Director.
A brief resume of the Director proposed to be re-appointed/retire by rotation and eligible for re-appointment is given
in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting in separate annexure.
f) Transfer of amount/shares to Investor Education and Protection Fund:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the IEPF (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017, dividend / interest / refund of applications which remains
unclaimed/unpaid for a period of 7 years is required to be transferred to IEPF. Further, the IEPF Rules mandate the
companies to transfer all shares on which dividend remains unclaimed/unpaid for a period of 7 consecutive years to
the demat account of the IEPF Authority.

Please note that the Company has already been transferred unpaid/unclaimed dividends pertaining to the financial
year 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 and corresponding shares thereon to the IEPF in prescribed time limit.
Further there are no remaining unpaid/unclaimed dividends and shares pending which are due for transfer to the
IEPF.

The Members/claimants whose shares or unclaimed dividends get transferred to IEPF may claim the shares or
apply for refund from the IEPF Authority by following the refund procedure as detailed on the website of IEPF

Authority at www.iepf.gov.in

Annual Report 2024- 25 Page | 43


https://www.medicaps.com/upload/code-of-conduct-PIT.pdf
http://www.iepf.gov.in/

0)

h)

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board members and Senior Management Personnel of
the Company, in line with the amended SEBI Listing Regulations. The Code lays down the standard of conduct
which is expected to be followed by the Board members and Senior Management personnel. On the basis of
declarations received from the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel, A Certificate from the
Chairman & Managing Director, affirming compliance of the said Code by all the Board Members and members of
the senior management to whom the Code is applicable, is obtained, with respect to the financial year 2024-25. The
Code is available on the website of the Company at https://medicaps.com/upload/ CODE-OF-CONDUCT-FOR-
BOARD-OF-DIRECTORS-AND-KMPS.pdf

Further, the Directors and the Senior Management of the Company have submitted disclosures to the Board that they
do not have any material financial and commercial transactions that may have a potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large.

The company has adopted a policy on dissemination of information on the material events to stock exchange in
accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The said policy is available on the website of the
company at following web link: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Policy-for-determination-of-materiality-of-
events-or-information.pdf

The company has adopted the policy on preservation of documents in accordance with regulation 9 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The documents preservation policy is available on the website of the company at following web
link: https://www.medicaps.com/upload/Policy-for-preservation-of-Documents.pdf

19. DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Alok K Garg, Managing Director of Medi-Caps Limited declare that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 315t March 2025.

For, MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

DATE: 05™ AUGUST 2025 ALOK K GARG
PLACE: INDORE MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIN: 00274321

TABLE-1 DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING ACCORDING TO SIZE CLASS AS ON MARCH 31, 2025

Category (Amount in Rs.) Number of % of total Shares Amount | % age of Total Shares
Shareholders Shareholders

Up to 1000 7497 67.95 1960970 1.57
1001-2000 851 7.71 1378880 1.11
2001-3000 610 5.53 1708340 1.37
3001-4000 511 4.63 1973890 1.58
4001-5000 278 2.52 1332040 1.07
5001-10000 629 5.70 4944490 3.96
10001-20000 346 3.14 5295070 4.25
20001-30000 83 0.75 2076740 1.67
30001-40000 62 0.56 2220650 1.78
40001-50000 27 0.25 1256670 1.01
50001-100000 76 0.69 5517580 4.42
100001-Above 63 0.57 95034240 76.21

Total 11033 100.00 124699560 100.00
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C sub clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015}
To,
The Members of
Medi-Caps Limited

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Medi-Caps
Limited having CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231 and having registered office at 201, Pushpratna Paradise, 9/5 New
Palasiya, Indore, (M.P.) 452001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company and its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the
Financial Year ending on 31t March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such
other Statutory Authority.

Details of Directors:

S. No. | Name of Directors DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Mittal 00035272 06/08/1983
2 Mr. Alok K Garg* 00274321 01/04/1999
3 Mrs. Kusum Mittal 00035356 04/05/1991
4 Mr. Ashok Omprakash Agrawal 07870578 25/07/2017
5 Mr. Dharmendra Solanki 09055239 05/02/2021
6 Mr. Gajendra Singh 10253991 11/08/2023

Note: Date of Appointment Mr. Alok K Garg showing on MCA portal is 01/04/2007.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For L.N. Joshi & Company
Company Secretaries

L. N. Joshi
Dated: 05" August, 2025 Proprietor
Place: Indore FCS: 5201; C.P. No 4216

UDIN: F005201G000902306
Peer Review Certificate No. 1722/2022
Unique Code Number: S2002MP836100
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MD/ CFO CERTIFICATE
Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (LODR) Requlations, 2015

To,
The Board of Directors
Medi-Caps Limited

A. We have reviewed financial Statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31t March, 2025 and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading.

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any,
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

(1) That there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during  the year.

(2) That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements and

(3) That there are no instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company internal control system over
financial reporting.

DATE: 21/05/2025 FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
PLACE: INDORE

ALOK K GARG HEMANT SETHI
MANAGING DIRECTOR CFO
DIN: 00274321
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant to Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of
MEDICAPS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Medi-caps Limited (‘the Company’) for the
year ended 31t March, 2025, as stipulated in Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 26A, 27 clauses (b) to
(i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is the responsibility of
the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company
has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations,
as applicable.

We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in
India, to the extent relevant and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes and Guidance Note
on Certification of Corporate Governance both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note
requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

DATE: 05™ AUGUST 2025 FOR, RAWKA & ASSOCIATES
PLACE: INDORE CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: 25429040BMGSUT2872 FRN: 021606C

VENUS RAWKA
PARTNER
M. NO. 429040
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO,

THE MEMBERS OF
MEDICAPS LIMITED,
INDORE-M.P.

Report on Audit of Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

WZ have audited the accompanying Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of MEDICAPS LIMITED (‘the Company’),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31%t March 2025, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “The Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the Profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAS)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Other Information — Information other than financial statement and Auditor’s Report- thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with Governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of these Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including other comprehensive income, the Cash Flow
Statement, and statement of change in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March, 2025 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31t March, 2025 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
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explanations given to us, the remuneration paid or provided by the company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

I.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations in its financial position in the Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements.

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contract for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

Il.  The company was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund during the
financial year.

IV. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding whether recorded
in writing or not that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

b.The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or
entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or provide guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

c. Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations given under sub-clause (i) and (ii) by the management contain any
material mis- statement.

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

vi. No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company during the year.

Place: Indore For Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN:25429040BMGSTV8391 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka
(Partner)
M. No.: 429040
Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to Para 1 under the heading on “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of
even date to the members of Medi-caps Limited for the year ended 31% March, 2025)

M (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of Property, Plant & Equipments.
(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Property, Plant & Equipments have been physically verified by the management of the
Company in accordance with phased programme of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable, considering
the size and nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.
(c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of records of the Company examined by
us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements are
held in the name of the Company.
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) during
the year, therefore clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, physical verification of the inventories has been
conducted by the management at reasonable interval. The Company has maintained proper records of inventory;
there was no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventories as compared to the book.

(b) The Company had no working capital limit against the security of the inventories during the year.

(iii) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, provided any guarantee
or security to any other entity.

(b) During the year the investments made are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not
granted any loans or advances during the year.

(c) The Company has not granted loans during the year. Therefore Clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.
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(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) There were no loans which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the company has not entered into any
transactions as specified in the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 hence this clause is
not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to
the extent notified.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not covered under Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act, hence this
clause is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records of the Company, the

Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

As provided to us by the management, the extent of the arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of the
financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date, they became payable, are Nil.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues outstanding of income tax / Sales Tax/ wealth tax /
service tax / custom duty / excise duty / VAT / cess etc. on account of any dispute except the following:

Name of the | Nature of Dues Forum where Period to which |Amount Involved | Amount Unpaid
Statute dispute is pending the amount
relates
Income Tax Income Tax CIT(A) AY. Rs. 3,77,00,360/- |Rs. 3,77,00,360/-
Act, 1961 2014-15
Income Tax Income Tax CIT(A) AY. Rs.9,86,409/- Rs.7,88,128/-
Act,1961 2017-18

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,1961.

(ix) a) The Company has not obtained any loans, or borrowings of any kind from banks, financial institutions, or other

lenders.

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or other
lender.

c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds were raised on short-term basis
and neither they have been, used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary.

()  (a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised moneys
by way of any public offer including debt instruments during the year hence the provisions of clause 3 (x)(a) of .
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xi)  (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during
the year.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in
the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of
its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year,
in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
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(xv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi). a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act,1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year.

c) the company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India,

d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies(Reserve Bank) Directions,2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly, Clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx)  a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company, hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a)
of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) The Company does not have ongoing projects relating to CSR. Hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

Place: Indore For: Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka

(Partner)

M. No.: 429040
Annexure ‘B’ to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to Para 2(f) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our report of
even date to the members of Medi-caps Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2025)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MEDICAPS LIMITED (“the Company”)
as of 315 March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls over Financial
Reporting, both applicable to an audit of the Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
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on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on, the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Place: Indore For: Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka
(Partner)
M. No.: 429040
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note Asat Asat
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
A |Assets
1 |Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 209.64 226.12
(b) Capital Work in Progress 2 7.58 0.00
(b) Financial Assets
i.Investments 3 4390.47 4390.58
ii. Other Financial Assets 0.00 0.00
(c) Other non-current assets 4 4.92 4.93
Sub-Total - Non Current Assets 4612.61 4621.63
2 | Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 2.71 3.16
(b) Financial Assets
i. Investments 6 1297.99 1120.25
ii. Trade receivables 7 366.40 465.04
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 5.24 4.54
iv. Bank Balance other than (iii) above 9 0.00 0.00
(c) Other current assets 10 517.71 594.60
Sub-Total - Current Assets 2190.05 2187.59
Total 6802.66 6809.22
B. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1| EQUITY
(i) Equity Share Capital 11 1247.00 1247.00
(ii) Other Equity 12 5487.39 5401.93
Sub-Total - Equity 6734.39 6648.93
2| LIABILITIES
I.| Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 0.00 0.00
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 13 41.45 42.89
Sub-Total - Non Current Liabilities 4145 42.89
I1.| Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 0.00 0.00
(ii) Trade payables due to 14
(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and Small enterprises: and 0.00 0.00
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors 4.03 0.50
other than Micro enterprises and
Small Enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities 15 22.79 21.90
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 16 0.00 95.00
Sub-Total -Current Liabilities 26.82 117.40
Total 6802.66 6809.22
The Notes referred to above are integral part of Financial Statement.
Note on Accounts as Note '1to 30 '
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040

Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391

Chairman & Director
DIN:00035272

Hemant Sethi
C.FO.

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

Abhishek Jain

Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

Standalone Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

particulars Note For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
I. |Revenue from operations 17 241.66 716.54
Il.  |Other Income 18 56.25 14.72
1. Total Revenue (I +11) 297.91 731.26
IV, |Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 0.00 0.00
Purchase of stock in trade 0.00 0.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 19 0.45 1.20
Employee benefit expense 20 181.05 82.88
Finance Charges 0.00 0.00
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 16.01 16.01
Other expenses 21 71.90 148.44
Total Expenses 269.41 248.53
V. |Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (111 - IV) 28.50 482.73
V1. |Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00
VIl [Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) 28.50 482.73
VIl |Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
IX. |Profit before tax (VII - VIII) 28.50 482.73
X. | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 0.00 95.00
(2) Earlier year excess provision for tax written back -25.56 0.00
(3) Deferred tax 23 -1.45 -1.09
XI. [Profit/(Loss) for the period From continuing Operations (IX - X) 55.51 388.82
XIlI. [Profit/(Loss) From Discontinue Operation 0.00 0.00
XIII. | Total Profit/(Loss) for the Period (XI+XII) 55.51 388.82
XIV. |Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 29.95 149.36
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(i) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period comprising Profit(Loss) and other
XV. |comprehensive income for the period (X111 + XIV) 85.46 538.18
XVI. |Earning per equity share: 26
For Continue Operation
(1) Basic 0.45 3.12
(2) Diluted 045 3.12
For Discontinue Operation
(1) Basic 0.00 0.00
(2) Diluted 0.00 0.00
For Continue and Discontinue Operation
(1) Basic 0.45 3.12
(2) Diluted 0.45 3.12
The Notes referred to above are integral part of Financial Statement.
Note on Accounts as Note '1 to 30'
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040

Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391

Chairman & Director
DIN:00035272

Hemant Sethi
CF.O.

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

Abhishek Jain
Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

MEDI CAPS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31.03.2025
CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

A Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting Period

Equity Share Capital Rs. 10 Each

Balance at the
Beginning of the
reporting
period

Changes in equity share
capital due to prior period
errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
reporting period

Changes in equity share
capital during the year

Balance at the end of the reporting
period

2024-25

1247.00

1247.00

(2) Previous reporting Period

Equity Share Capital Rs. 10 Each

Balance at the
Beginning of the

Changes in equity share
capital due to prior period

Restated balance at
the beginning of the

Changes in equity share

Balance at the end of the reporting

reportmg errors reporting period capital during the year period
period
2023-24 1247.00 - - - 1247.00
B. Other Equity
(1) Current reporting Period 2024-25
Reserves and Surplus Total
General Share Forfeiture| Security . . . Other Items of Other
Reserves . Capital Reserve Retained Earnings .
. account Premium Comprehensive Income
(specify nature)

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period 01.04.2024 304.57 27.55 0.00 9.90 4717.68 342.23 5401.93
Changes i accounting policy or 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of 30457 27.55 0.00 9.90 4717.68 34223|  5401.93
the reporting period
Dividends 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit For the Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 55.51 29.95 85.46
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 31.03.2025 304.57 27.55 0.00 9.90 4773.19 372.18 5487.39
(2) Previous reporting Period 2023-24
Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period 01.04.2023 304.57 2755 0.00 9.90 4328.86 192.87 4863.75
Changes. in accounting policy or 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of 30457 27.55 0.00 9.90 4328.86 19287| 486375
the reporting period
Dividends 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit For the Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 388.82 149.36 538.18
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 31.03.2024 304.57 27.55 0.00 9.90 4717.68 342.23 5401.93
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040

Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391

Chairman & Director
DIN:00035272

Hemant Sethi
CF.O.

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

Abhishek Jain
Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

Year Ended
PARTICULARS
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax & Extraordinary Iltems 28.50 482.73
Adjustment For:
Depreciation 16.01 16.01
Dividend Income 0.00 0.00
Other Comprehensive Income 29.95 149.36
Profit/(Loss) from Discontinue operation 0.00 0.00
Operating Profit before Working Capital Change 74.46 648.10
Ajustment for Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Sundry Debtors 98.64 -241.22
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 0.45 -3.16
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans & Advances 76.91 -108.93
Increase/ (Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provision -90.58 109.60
Cash Generated from Working Capital 85.42 -243.71
Cash generated from Operation 159.88 404.38
Net Income Tax Paid -25.56 95.00
Net cash Flow from Operating Activity 185.44 309.38
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments -177.62 -313.25
Sale/(Purchase) of Fixed Assets -7.12 4.36
Dividend Received 0.00 0.00
Net Cash used in Investing Actvities -184.74 -308.89
C. Cash Flow from Financial Activities
Increase/ (Decrease) in Bank Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Net Cash Used in Financial Activities 0.00 0.00
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 0.70 0.49
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 4,54 4.05
Closing of the year 5.24 4.54
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.70 0.49
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040

Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

UDIN: 25429040BMGSTV8391

Chairman & Director

DIN:00035272

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

Hemant Sethi Abhishek Jain
C.F.O. Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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NOTE -1- BASIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (STANDALONE)
1. Corporate Information:
Medi-Caps Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 in 1983
as Medi-Caps Pvt. Ltd. The Company has permanently discontinued its manufacturing activities on 21.11.2019 and now operates
in Real Estate Sector. The registered office of the Company is located at 201, Pushpratna Paradise 9/5, New Palasia, Opp. UCO
Bank, Indore (M.P) - 452001. The financial statements were authorised to be issued in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on 21/05/2025.
The Company’s shares are listed for trading on BSE Limited.
2. Basis of preparation:
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act.
(ii) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis of
accounting, Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, except where otherwise stated, the accounting principles have been consistently applied.
3. Rounding of amounts:
All amounts disclosed in the financial statement and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs; except where otherwise
indicated.
4. Current versus non-current classification:
The company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet on current/non-current classification. An Asset is treated as
current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is Current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other Liabilities are classified as non- current.
Deferred tax liabilities are classified under non-current Liabilities.
5. Use of Estimates and Assumptions:
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires subjective and complex judgments to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses at the date of these financial statements.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:
a) Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial liabilities,
b) The useful lives of, or expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits bodied in, depreciable assets,

¢) Valuation of Inventories and Inventory obsolescence,
d) Provisions and Bad Debts.
6. Revenue Recognition:
Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the
buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when all the following conditions are satisfied:

e  The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor

effective control over the goods sold;

e  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

e ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

e  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of returns and allowance, trade discounts and volume rebates and does not include Value added tax (VAT),
Central Sales tax (CST) and any other taxes.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
initial cost of an asset comprises of its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The purchase
price or construction cost is the aggregate amount, paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.
When significant parts of plants and equipment’s are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful life. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
as and when incurred.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if any,
are accounted prospectively

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line method. In accordance with requirements prescribed
under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and
equipment and has adopted the useful lives and residual value as prescribed in Schedule Il. The estimated useful lives of assets
are as follows:

ASSETS USEFUL LIFE OF ASSET
Factory Building 30 years
Office Building 30 years
Plant & Machinery 20 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

8. Inventories:
Inventories are valued at Lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and
conditions are accounted for as follows:
Raw materials
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Finished goods and work-in-progress
Cost includes direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
9. Trade Receivable:
Trade receivables are recognized at fair value, the outstanding balances of sundry debtors, advances etc. are verified by the
management periodically and on the basis of such verification management determines whether the said outstanding balance are
good, bad or doubtful and accordingly same are written off or provided for.
Receivables that are expected in one year or less, are classified as current assets, if not they are presented as non-current assets.
10. Cash Flow Statement:
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and Balances
with Banks.
11. Investments:
The investments are valued at fair market value and are therefore reported as per relevant Ind AS-113 and Comprehensive
Income consequent to the effect has been reported in Financial Statements.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value.
12. Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash in hand and at banks. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, as defined above.
13. Share Capital:
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
During the year there is no change in the subscribed share capital as is issued by the company.
14. Earnings per Share:
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders is adjusted for after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
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shares and the number of shares that are outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

15. Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.

16. Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying
values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax
credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

17. Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. During the Year Company does not have any Borrowings.

18. Borrowings Cost:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur.

The Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.

19. Trade payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

20. Current Tax:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in
accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Where current tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

21. Financial Instruments and Risk Review:

The Company’s principal Financial Assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances
and loan. The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables.

22. Fair Value Hierarchy:

The Fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable
or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1- Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2- Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3- Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation model based on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the instrument nor are they based on available market data. The following table summarises carrying amounts of
financial instruments by their categories and their values in fair value hierarchy for each year presented.

For 315t March, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Total
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 0 0 0 5688.45 0 5688.45
Trade Receivables 0 0 0 0 366.40 366.40
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 0 5.24 5.24
Other Bank Balances 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derivative Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 5688.45 371.64 6060.09
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trade Payables 0 0 0 0 4.03 4.03
Derivative Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial 0 0 0 0 0 0
Liabilities
Total 0 0 0 0 4.03 4.03
For 315t March, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Total
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 0 0 0 5510.83 0 5510.83
Trade Receivables 0 0 0 0 465.04 465.04
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 0 4,54 4.54
Other Bank Balances 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derivative Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 5510.83 469.58 5980.41
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trade Payables 0 0 0 0 0.50 0.50
Derivative Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial 0 0 0 0 0 0
Liabilities
Total 0 0 0 0 0.50 0.50
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Note-02- Property., Plant and Equipments
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Notes on Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
Note : 03 Non-Current Investments 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
a) [Investment in properties 107.93 107.93
b) |Investment in Equity instruments
i) |Trade Investment (Unquoted)
In Subsidiary Company
1,46,81,953 (1,46,81,953) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each
of Medgel Private Limited 4282.35 4282.35
4282.35 4282.35
ii) |Investment in Equity Instrument (Quoted)
100 (100) Equity Shares of Natural Capsules 0.18 0.30
0.18 0.30
4390.47 4390.58
Aggregate amount of quotated Investments 0.01 0.01
Aggregate Market value of quotated Investments 0.18 0.30
Aggregate amount of unquotated Investments 4390.28 4390.28
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment 0.00 0.00
Note : 04 Other Non Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits 4.92 4.93
4.92 4.93
Note : 05 Inventories
Value at Cost or Net Realisable Value, Whichever is Lower
Raw Materials 0.00 0.00
Finished Goods 271 3.16
Stores and Spares 0.00 0.00
Packing Material 0.00 0.00
271 3.16
Note : 06 Current Investment
Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Axis Focused 25 Fund 12.00 1154
IDFC Equity Fund (Bandhan Bank) 180.30 167.74
Reliance Top 200 Equity Fund 298.17 279.31
HDFC Low Duration Fund 301.21 346.80
Kotak Special Opportunities Fund 86.71 0.00
Motilal Oswal Flexi Cap Reg 87.90 0.00
Motilal Oswal Ultra Short Term Reg -G 39.00 0.00
ICICI Prudential MF All season Bond Fund 168.06 154.58
Reliance Money Manager Fund- Growth 124.64 160.28
1297.99 1120.25
Agreegate amount of quotated Investments 925.98 778.31
Agreegate Market value of quotated Investments 1297.99 1120.25
Agreegate amount of unquotated Investments 0.00 0.00
Agreegate amount of impairment in value of Investment 0.00 0.00
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 07 Trade Receivables 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) |Trade Receivables considered good - Secured
(b) |Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 366.40 465.04
(c) |[Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
(d) |Trade Receivables- Credit imapired
366.40 465.04
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Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
Note : 08 Cash & Cash Equivalents 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Balances with banks
In Current Accounts 5.13 4.46
(b) Cheques, drafts on hands
(c) Cash in hand 0.12 0.08
(a) Earmarked Balances with banks
(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the
borrowings, guarantees, and other commitments
5.24 4.54
Note : 09 Bank Balance other than above
Balance with Noted Banks :
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Note : 10 Other Current Assets
(Unsecured & Considered Good - Advance recoverable
inCashorinkind or for value to be received)
(i) Advances other than capital advances
Advance to Suppliers & Others 196.25 190.00
(i) Others
Advance Tax & TDS (Net of Provisions) 212.72 301.08
Pre-Operative Expenses 4.40 5.87
Deposit with Banks (FDR) 104.30 97.62
Accured Interest 0.02 0.02
517.71 594.60
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 11 Share Capital 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Authorised Share Capital :
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous Year 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Issued Share Capital:
1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

Subscribed and Paid Share Capital :
1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

1500.00 1500.00
1247.00 1247.00
1247.00 1247.00
1247.00 1247.00

Note: The Company has only one class of equity shares at a par value of Rs. 10. All the equity shares carry equal

rights and obligations including the right to receive dividend

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Equity Shares Numbers Value Numbers Value
At the beginning of the year 12469956 1247.00 12469956 1247.00
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the and the year 12469956 1247.00 12469956 1247.00
Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the company
No. of Shares as at
Name of Shareholders 31.03.25 % of Holding 31.03.24 % of Holding
Alok K Garg 3225920 25.87% 3225920 25.87%
Manisha Garg 2694820 21.61% 2694820 21.61%
Sangeetha S 694400 5.57% 694400 5.57%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Name of Promoter 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 Change
No. of shares % Held No. of shares % Held
R.C.Mittal 10000.00 0.08% 10000.00 0.08% 0.00%
Alok K Garg 3225920.00 25.87% 3225920.00 25.87% 0.00%
Manisha Garg 2694820.00 21.61% 2694820.00 21.61% 0.00%
Nirmala Anantram Mittal 3172.00 0.03% 3172.00 0.03% 0.00%
Trapti Investments LLP 307128.00 2.46% 307128.00 2.46% 0.00%
Kusum Mittal 12000.00 0.10% 10000.00 0.08% 0.02%
Gitika Agrawal 400.00 0.00% 400.00 0.00% 0.00%
Palash Garg 38808 0.31% 0.31%
Akshit Garg 38304 0.31% 0.31%
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Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
Note : 12 Other Equity 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 9.90 9.90
Less: Adjustment for Investment in Share Written Off 0.00 0.00
9.90 9.90

Share Forfeiture Alc
As per last balance sheet 2755 27.55
General Reserve
As per last balance sheet 304.57 304.57
Surplus
Opening balance of Profit & Loss A/lc 4717.68 4328.86
Add: Net profit for the current year 55.51 388.82
Closing Balance 4773.19 4717.68
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance of Other Comprehensive Income 342.23 192.87
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 29.95 149.36
Closing Balance 372.18 342.23

5487.39 5401.93

Explanation to the Note No. 12 Other Equity

Capital Reserve

The Capital Reserve has been created as per the requirement of earlier provisions of The Companies Act,1956. Such reserve
is not available for distribution to the shareholders.

General Reserve

The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit before declaring dividend to General Reserve pursuant to earlier
provision of The Companies Act, 1956. As transfer to the general reserve is not mandatorily required under The Companies

Act, 2013.
Note : 13 Deferred Tax Liability
On Depreciation (Difference as per Books & as per I.T. Act) 41.45 42.89
41.45 42.89
As at As at
Note : 14 Trade Payable 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Total Outstanding dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 0.00 0.00
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 4.03 0.50
4.03 0.50

As on 31st March 2025

Note : 14A Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Les;et:fn L 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i)[MSME
(i) |Others 4.03 4.03

(iii) | Disputed Dues- MSME
(iv) | Disputed Dues- Others

As on 31st March 2024
Note : 14A Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Les;et:ra\n ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i)[MSME
(ii)|Others 0.50 0.50

(iii) | Disputed Dues- MSME
(iv) | Disputed Dues- Others

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at

Note : 15 Other Current Liabilites 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Revenue Received in Advance 0.00 0.00
(b) Other Advances 0.00 0.00
(c) Others 0.00 0.00
Audit Fee Payable 0.27 0.27
Advance Received from Customers 0.00 10.00
Commission Payable 4.86 4.86
GST Payable 1.02 -7.76
Salary Payable 11.25 10.67
Professional Tax 0.05 0.04
TDS on Consultancy 0.14 0.19
TDS on Contractor Payment 0.02 0.00
TDS on Salary 420 2.50
Outstanding Expenses 0.97 1.13
22.79 21.90

Note :16 Current Tax Liability

For Taxation 0.00 95.00
0.00 95.00
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NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT

Amount in Lakhs

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
Note : 17 Revenue from Operation 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Shop Sale 237.36 693.02
Other Operating Income
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 10.36
Interest Income 0.00 6.56
Lease Rent 4.30 6.60
241.66 716.54
Note :18 Other Incomes
Interest Income 8.58 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 10.00 0.00
Capital gain/ (Loss) on Mutual Fund 37.67 14.72
56.25 14.72

Note: Miscellaneous Income & Interest Income were earlier recognized in Revenue from operations, however, not being a part

of revenue the same are reclassified in other income.

Note : 19 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Closing Stock of :

Finished Goods 271 3.16
Stock in Process 0.00 0.00
Waste 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 2.71 3.16
Opening Stock of :
Finished Goods 3.16 0.00
Stock in Process 0.00 0.00
Transfer from Fixed Assets 0.00 4.36
Total (B) 3.16 4.36
Increase/(Decrease) in Finished goods stock (A-B) -0.45 -1.20
Note : 20 Employees Remuneration & benefits
Salary, Wages, Allowances & other Benefits 96.77 49.46
Directors Remuneration 84.00 33.37
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.28 0.05
181.05 82.88
Note : 21 Other Expenses

Advertisement & Publicity 1.45 20.65
Audit Fees 0.30 0.30
Annual Listing Fees 487 5.18
Bank Charges 0.01 0.01
Brokerage & Commission Expenses 30.86 46.16
Building Deviopment Expenses 0.00 11.03
Consultancy Charges 757 417
Conveyance Expenses 7.04 443
Freight Expenses 0.21 0.00
Insurance Charges 1.46 1.47
Legal Expenses 0.00 0.85
Membership Fee & Subscription 2.98 0.28
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.86 227
News Paper & Periodicals 0.00 0.00
Office & General Expenses 0.17 0.00
Power & Electricity Expenses 0.49 0.43
Postage & Telegram 0.14 0.10
Pre-Operative Expenses 1.47 1.47
Printing & Stationary 0.05 0.03
Professional Tax for Company 0.00 0.03
Rent, Rates & Taxes 1.70 233
ROC Expenses 0.40 0.31
Round off 0.00 0.00

Repairs & Maintenance
Building Repair & Maintenance Expenses 6.03 7.29
Other 0.00 0.01
Sales Promotion Expense 0.07 19.19
Telephone & Mobile Expense 0.00 0.01
Travelling Expense 0.80 19.47
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 264 0.85
Website Maintenance Charges 0.34 0.13
71.90 148.44

Note 22: Segment Information
The Company has only one reportable segment, i.e., Real Estate division as the Company has discontinued its Pharma division
w.e.f. 21/11/2019.
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Note 23: Deferred Tax
Information on deferred tax has been provided in accordance with Ind AS-12 Accounting for taxation on income, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The deferred tax assets for the year is Rs.1.45 Lakhs which has been recognized
in the profit & Loss Account.

Amount in Lakhs

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

Information on Related party transactions as per Ind AS 24 on related party disclosure:

(1) Detail of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 24 Payment to Auditors 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Audit Fees 0.30 0.30
0.30 0.30
Note 25 Related Party Disclosure

For the year ended

For the year ended

S.No Related Party Transactions 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 |Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
Subsidiary Company Investment 4282.35 4282.35
(onarm length basis in the ordinary course of business)
Sales 0.46 0.00
2 |Medicaps Charitable Trust Lease Rent 1.50 6.00
(Inclusive of GST)
3 |Mr. Alok garg Remuneration 84.00 33.37
Managing Director
4 |Mr. Akshit Garg Remuneration 30.00 11.92
General Manager
5 |Mrs. Saloni Garg Remuneration 24.00 7.53
Senior Manager
6 |Mr. Abhishek Jain Remuneration 6.90 6.44
Company Secretary
7 |Mr. Hemant Sethi Remuneration 14.96 12.47
Chief Financial Officer
8 |Mrs. Yogita Sethi Consultancy 452 0.00
Wife of CFO
(11) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
. As at As at
S.No Related Party Transactions 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
1 |Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
Subsidiary Company Investment 4282.35 4282.35
(onarm length basis in the ordinary course of business)
Sales 0.00 0.00
2 |Medicaps Charitable Trust Lease Rent 0.00 0.50
(Inclusive of GST)
3 [Mr. Alok garg Remuneration 7.00 7.00
Managing Director
4 [Mr. Akshit Garg Remuneration 2.50 2.50
General Manager
5 [Mrs. Saloni Garg Remuneration 2.00 0.00
Senior Manager
6 |Mr. Abhishek Jain Remuneration 0.57 0.57
Company Secretary
7 |Mr. Hemant Sethi Remuneration 1.65 1.42
Chief Financial Officer
8 [Mrs. Yogita Sethi Consultancy 0.00 0.00
Wife of CFO
Note 26 Earning Per Share
Earning per share. the mmerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Eamning per shares:
2024-25 2023-24
i) Profit after tax used as the numerator 3551 38882
i)  Basic/ Weighted As=rage number of Equity Sharesused 12469956 2469956
as the denominator
iif) Nominal Value of Equityshares 10/- 10/-
iv)  Basic & Diluted Earning per Equity Share
For Contime Operation 045 312
For Discontime Operation 0.00 0.00
For Contimue and Discontinue Operation 043 312

Note 27: The company does not have outstanding for more than 30 days as on 31st March 2025 of S.S.I units the respective
parties.

Note 28 The previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ restated wherever necessary to confirm with the current years

classification.

k)
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Note 29: Ratio
Ratios Numerator Denominator FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24 Change Explanation

The Increase in ratio is because of

Current Ratio (in times) Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 81.65 18.63 338.29% . I
decrease in current Liabilities.

Long Term Borrowings+ Short Term
Borrowings
Earnings for Debt service = Net profit after
. . tax + Non- cash operating expenses + interest| Debt service = Interest + Principal
Debt-St Ci Rat . - - - -
eot-service Loverage Ratlo + other non cash adjustments+ Interest on  |Repayment (Non-Current debts only)
debt debited in P&L

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Equity - - - -

The Decrease in ratio is because
Return on Equity Ratio (in times) Profit for the year after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity 0.0083 0.0609 -86.38% |of significant change in the profit
for the year.

The Decrease and change in ratio
is because of change in
conversion of more inventory to
sale during the year.

The Decrease in ratio is because
Revenue From Operations Awerage Trade Receivable 0.58 2.08 -72.05% |of significant change in the profit
for the year.

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in

N Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 0.15 0.76 -79.67%
times)

Trade Receviable Turnover Ratio
(in times)

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in

times) Purchases during the year Average Trade Payable - - - _

The Decrease in ratio is because
Working Capital (i.e. Total current of significant change in the
assets less Total Current Liabilities) 0.11 0.35 -68.08% Turnover for the year which lead
to change in profit for the year.
The Decrease in ratio is because
Net Profit Ratio (in %) Profit for the year before exception items Revenue From Operations 11.79% 67.37% -82.49% |of significant change in the
turnover for the year.

The Decrease in ratio is because

of significant change in the

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in

. Revenue From Operations
times)

Average capital Employed

Return On Capital Employed Earnings before Interest & Tax 0.004 0.075 -94.32%

(Capital Employed = Net Worth) Turnover for the year which lead
to change in profit for the year.
The increase in ratio is because of
Retun on Investment Income Generated from Investment Funds Average invested Funds 0.007 0.003 124.22%|realisation of Investment during
the year.
Notes:

1. The ratios are calculated on absolute figures.

2. The Company is now operating as real estate company and no purchases in this respect have been made during the year and
previous year.

3. The Ratios calculated in respect of Inventory and trade payables have been updated to include COGS and purchases during
the year respectively.

Note 30: Other Statutory Information-

1.The Company has not borrowed any funds from banks and financial institutions for any specific purpose.

2.All the immovable properties title deeds are held in the name of the company and Company is the sole owner of these

immovable properties.

3.The Company does not have any Benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the Company

for holding any Benami property.

4.The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government

authority.

5.The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

6.The Company have charges which are yet to be satisfied with ROC beyond the statutory period, the detail of which are:

Note No. Details of Charges yet to be satisfied with ROC

Charge ID | Charge Date of Amount Reason
Holder's Creation
Name
90207250 Bank of 24/03/1992 3.00 | The Company has filed the forms for satisfaction of charge
Baroda in physical mode and the same are not traceable as the matter
90202622 Bank of 05/10/1990 10.00 | is very old. The Company has made several requests to the
Baroda ROC for deletion of the charge ID, however, in absence of
90204557 Bank of 24/07/1986 7.00 | the adequate evidence same could not be processed. Due to
Baroda that these charges are still being reflected on MCA Portal.

7.The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

8.The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

9.The Company has not issued any security for a specific purpose.

10.The Company has not proposed or declared dividend during the year.

11.The Company has initiated the legal proceedings under section 138 of negotiable instruments act and u/s 420 of the Indian
penal code, against Jay formulation Limited before First Class Civil Judge, District Court, Indore. The same has been initiated
for recovery of outstanding dues.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,

The Members,

Medicaps Limited,

Indore- (M.P.)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of Medicaps Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiary Medgel Private Limited (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the consolidated financial statement and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated
Loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Ind AS

Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind
AS Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with Governance. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to

preparation of these Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial

reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial Statements, which have been audited by our auditors, such other auditors remains responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We solely responsible for our audit
opinions.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Place: Indore For Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25429040BMGSTU4862 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka
(Partner)
M. No.: 429040
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section

133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” which is based on the auditor’s reports of the Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial control over financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company and its subsidiary Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us :

i) The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group. The group has following pending litigations which are stated in the table below.

Name of the Nature of Dues Forum  Period to which | Amount Involved Amount Unpaid
Statute where the amount
dispute is relates
pending
Income Tax Income Tax CIT(A) AY. 2014-15 | Rs.3,77,00,360/- Rs. 3,77,00,360/-
Act, 1961
Income Tax Income Tax CIT(A) AY.2017-18 Rs.9,86,409/- Rs.7,88,128/-
Act, 1961

ii. Provision has been made in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements, as required under the applicable law or

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative.

iii. The company was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund during the financial

year.

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge  and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or not that the intermediary shall whether directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or entities including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
provide guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

c. Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe

that the representations given under sub-clause (i) and (ii) by the management contain any material mis- statement.

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its

books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility

and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

vi. No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company during the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the

“Order”/”CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s

Report, according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO report issued by us for the

company and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the company, to which reporting under

CARQO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO Reports.

Annual Report 2024-25 Page | 72


https://taxguru.in/company-law/forms-appointment-resignation-removal-reporting-fraud-auditor-companies-act-2013.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/forms-appointment-resignation-removal-reporting-fraud-auditor-companies-act-2013.html

Place: Indore For Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25429040BMGSTU4862 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka

(Partner)

M. No.: 429040
Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Medicaps Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Medicaps Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

Inpour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place: Indore For Rawka & Associates
Date: 21/05/2025 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 25429040BMGSTU4862 Firm Reg. No: 021606C

Venus Rawka
(Partner)
M. No.: 429040
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025
CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note Asat Asat
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Assets
-1|Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 2795.84 2942.66
(b) Capital Work in Progress 2 7.58 0.00
(c) Goodwill 2 2814.15 2814.15
(d) Financial Assets
i. Investments 3 1542.23 931.90
ii. Other Financial Assets
(e) Other non-current assets 4 38.72 38.73
Sub-Total - Non Current Assets 7198.52 6727.44
-2| Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 320.03 573.59
(b) Financial Assets
i. Investments 6 2869.94 3014.33
ii. Trade receivables 7 879.02 1081.72
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 41.20 32.14
iv. Bank Balance other than (iii) above 9 0.00 0.00
(c) Other current assets 10 1233.61 1299.27
Sub-Total - Current Assets 5343.80 6001.05
Total 12542.32 12728.49
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
-1{ Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 1247.00 1247.00
(b) Other Equity 12 10880.65 10851.33
Total - Equity 12127.65 12098.32
-2|Liabilities
A Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 13 63.34 61.31
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 41.45 42.89
Sub-Total - Non Current Liabilities 104.79 104.20
-3| Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 0.00 0.00
(ii) Trade payables
() Total Outstanding dues of Micro
enterprises and Small enterprises: and 0.00 0.00
(b) Total Outstanding dues of creditors
other than Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 15 158.10 182.53
(b) Other current liabilities 16 151.77 248.43
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 0.00 95.00
Sub-Total -Current Liabilities 309.87 525.96
Total 12542.31 12728.49
The Notes referred to above are integral part of Financial Statement.
Note on Accounts as Note ‘1 to 34'
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner Chairman & Director Managing Director

Membership No. 429040 DIN:00035272 DIN:00274321

Place : Indore

Date: 21/05/2025

UDIN:25429040BMGSTU4862 Hemant Sethi Abhishek Jain
CF.O. Company Secretary

ACS: 36699
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

Consolidated Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Note For the year Ended | For the year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
I Revenue from operations 18 2547.71 273451
1. Other Income 19 272.95 47.50
Il Total Revenue (1 +11) 2820.66 2782.01
IV.  |Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 20 1016.99 842.84
Purchase of stock in trade 0.00 0.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 21 48.17 108.91
Taxes on sale of goods 0.00 0.00
Employee benefit expense 22 758.36 706.88
Finance Cost 23 248 0.00
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 171.82 168.65
Other expenses 24 906.95 1079.33
Total Expenses 2904.77 2906.61
V.  |Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (111 - 1V) -84.11 -124.60
V1. [Exceptional ltems 0.00 0.00
VIl |Profit before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI) -84.11 -124.60
VIl [Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00
IX. [Profit before tax (VII - VIII) -84.11 -124.60
X.  [Taxexpense:
(1) Current tax 0.00 95.00
(2) Earlier year (excess)/Short provision for tax written back -25.56 5.56
(3) Deferred tax -1.45 -1.09
XI. |Profit/(Loss) for the period From Continuing Operation (IX - X) -57.10 -224.08
XIl. |Profit/(Loss) From Discontinue Operation 0.00 0.00
XIIl. |Total Profit (Loss) For the Period -57.10 -224.08
XIV. |Profit or Loss Attributable to owners of Parents -57.10 -224.08
XV. |Profitor Loss Attributable to non-Controlling Interest 0.00 0.00
XVI. [Other Comprehensive Income
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 86.43 465.27
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(iii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(iv) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period comprising Profit(Loss) and
other
XVII.|comprehensive income for the period (X1 + XII) 29.33 241.20
XVIII| Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to owners of Parents 29.33 241.20
XIX. | Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to non-Controlling Interest 0.00 0.00
XV. |Earning per equity share: 29
For Continue Operation
(1) Basic -0.46 -1.80
(2) Diluted -0.46 -1.80
For Discontinue Operation
(1) Basic 0.00 0.00
(2) Diluted 0.00 0.00
For Continue and Discontinue Operation
(1) Basic -0.46 -1.80
(2) Diluted -0.46 -1.80
The Notes referred to above are integral part of Financial Statement.
Note on Accounts as Note ‘1 to 34'
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040

Place : Indore

Date: 21/05/2025
UDIN:25429040BMGSTU4862

Chairman & Director
DIN:00035272

Hemant Sethi
CF.0.

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

Abhishek Jain
Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEDI CAPS LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31.03.2025
CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting Period

Balance at the Restated balance| Changes in
Equity Share Capital Rs. 10 Each Begi nning ofthe| Changesin faquity §hare capital | at the begi nn.i ng eqyity sha.re Balance at the enq of the reporting
reporting due to prior period errors of the reporting | capital during period
period period the year
2024-25 1247.00 - - - 1247.00
(2) Previous reporting Period
Balance at the Restated balance| Changesin
inni Ch i ity sh ital inni i Bal t the end of th ti
Equity Share Capital Rs. 10 Each Begmnlng of the anges in _eqw y§ are capital | at the begmn.l ng qulty share alance at the en. of the reporting
reporting due to prior perioderrors of the reporting | capital during period
period period the year
2023-24 1247.00 - - - 1247.00
B. Other Equity
(1) Current reporting Period 2024-25
Reserves and Surplus
General Other Items of
Share Forfeiture|  Securities : Retained Other Total
Reserves . Capital Reserve . .
K account Premium Earnings Comprehensive
(specify nature)
Income
Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period 01.04.2024 304.57 27.55 3263.49 9.90 6195.08 1050.72 10851.33
Changes in accounting policy or 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning 304,57 2755 3263.49 9.90 6195.08 1050.72 10851.33
of the reporting period
Dividends 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit For the Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 -57.10 86.43 29.33
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 31.03.2025 304.57 27.55 3263.49 9.90 6137.98 1137.16 10880.66
(2) Previous reporting Period 2023-24
Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period 01.04.2023 304.57 27.55 3263.49 9.90 6419.16 585.45 10610.12
Changes in accounting policy or 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning 304,57 2755 3263.49 9.90 6419.16 585.45 10610.12
of the reporting period
Dividends 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Profit For the Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 -224.08 465.27 241.20
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 31.03.2024 304.57 27.55 3263.49 9.90 6195.08 1050.72 10851.33
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner Chairman & Director Managing Director
Membership No. 429040 DIN:00035272 DIN:00274321
Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

UDIN:25429040BMGSTU4862 Hemant Sethi Abhishek Jain
CFoO. Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

CIN: L70100MP1983PLC002231

Amount in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax & Extraordinary Items -84.11 -124.60
Adjustment For:
Depreciation 171.82 168.65
Dividend Income -0.71 -0.44
Other Comprehensive Income 86.43 465.27
Loss from discontinue Operation 0.00 0.00
Operating Profit before Working Capital Change 173.44 508.88
Ajustment for Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Sundry Debtors 202.69 -235.27
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories 253.56 133.31
(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans & Advances 65.68 497.76
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions -214.04 -110.26
Cash Generated from Working Capital 307.89 285.54
Cash generated from Operation 481.32 794.42
Income Tax for the year -25.56 100.56
Net cash Flow from Operating Activity 506.88 693.86
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments -465.94 -738.93
Purachse of Fixed Assets -32.59 -34.58
Dividend Received 0.71 0.44
Net Cash used in Investing Actvities -497.82 -773.07
C. Cash Flow from Financial Activities
Increase in Short term Bank Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Net Cash Used in Financial Activities 0.00 0.00
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 9.06 -79.21
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the
Beginning of the year 32.14 111.35
Closing of the year 41.20 32.14
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 9.06 -79.21
As per our report of even date, For and on behalf of the board ,
Rawka & Associates MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.:-021606C
Venus Rawka Ramesh Chandra Mittal Alok K. Garg

Partner

Membership No. 429040
Place : Indore

Date : 21/05/2025

Chairman & Director
DIN:00035272

Managing Director
DIN:00274321

UDIN:25429040BMGSTU4862 Hemant Sethi Abhishek Jain
C.F.O. Company Secretary
ACS: 36699
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NOTE -1- BASIC ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONSOLIDATED)
1. Corporate Information:
Medi-Caps Limited (‘the Company’) is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 in
1983 as Medi-Caps Pvt. Ltd. The Company has permanently discontinued its manufacturing activities on 21.11.2019 and
now operates in Real Estate Sector while its wholly owned subsidiary, Medgel Private Limited operates as a pharmaceutical
Company. The financial statements were authorised to be issued in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
21/05/2025. The Company’s shares are listed for trading on BSE Limited.
2. Basis of preparation:
(i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the (‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
relevant provisions of the Act.
(ii) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on accrual basis of
accounting, Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, except where otherwise stated, the accounting principles have been consistently applied.
3. Rounding of amounts:
All amounts disclosed in the financial statement and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs; except where
otherwise indicated.
4. Current versus non-current classification:
The company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet on current/non-current classification. An Asset is treated
as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is Current when:
a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other Liabilities are classified as non- current.
Deferred tax liabilities are classified under non-current Liabilities.
5. Use of Estimates and Assumptions:
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires subjective and complex judgments to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses at the date of these financial statements.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:
a) Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial liabilities,
b) The useful lives of, or expected pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefits bodied in, depreciable assets,

¢) Valuation of Inventories and Inventory obsolescence,
d) Provisions and Bad Debts.
6. Revenue Recognition:
Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when all the following conditions are satisfied:

e  The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership

nor effective control over the goods sold,;

e  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

e  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of returns and allowance, trade discounts and volume rebates and does not include Value added tax
(VAT), Central Sales tax (CST) and any other taxes.
7. Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The initial cost of an asset comprises of its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate amount, paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to
acquire the asset.
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When significant parts of plants and equipment’s are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful life. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit or
Loss as and when incurred.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes, if
any, are accounted prospectively

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line method. In accordance with requirements
prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of its property,
plant and equipment and has adopted the useful lives and residual value as prescribed in Schedule II. The estimated useful
lives of assets are as follows:

ASSETS USEFUL LIFE OF ASSET
Factory Building 30 years
Leasehold Land 30 years
Office Building 30 years
Plant & Machinery 20 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years

8. Inventories:

Inventories are valued at Lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location
and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Finished goods and work-in-progress

Cost includes direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

9. Trade Receivable:

Trade receivables are recognized at fair value, the outstanding balances of sundry debtors, advances etc. are verified by the
management periodically and on the basis of such verification management determines whether the said outstanding balance
are good, bad or doubtful and accordingly same are written off or provided for.

Receivables that are expected in one year or less, are classified as current assets, if not they are presented as non-current
assets.

10. Cash Flow Statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and
Balances with Banks.

11. Investments:

The investments are valued at fair market value are therefore reported as per relevant Ind-AS 113 and comprehensive
Income consequent to that effect have been reported in Financial Statements.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value.

12. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash in hand and at banks. For the purpose of the statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances, as defined above.

13. Share Capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

During the year there is no change in the subscribed share capital as is issued by the company.

14. Earnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders is adjusted for after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares and the number of shares that are outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

15. Provisions:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

16. Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax
credits could be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

17. Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. During the Year Company does not have any Borrowings.

18. Borrowings Cost:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

The Company ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

19. Trade payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

20. Current Tax:

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of estimated taxable income and tax credits computed in
accordance with the provisions of the relevant tax laws and based on the expected outcome of assessments / appeals.

Where current tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

21. Employee Benefits:

(a) Gratuity:

The Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust maintained with Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The liability with respect to Gratuity is made as per the method stipulated in the payment of
gratuity Act, 1972.

(b) Provident Fund:

Provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a
specified percentage of the employee’s salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary). The contributions, are made to the
provident fund as specified under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952.

22. Financial Instruments and Risk Review:

The Company’s principal Financial Assets include investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances and loan. The Company’s financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables.

23. Fair Value Hierarchy:

The Fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1- Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2- Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3- Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part
using a valuation model based on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the instrument nor are they based on available market data. The following table summarises carrying amounts
of financial instruments by their categories and their values in fair value hierarchy for each year presented.

For 31t March,2025
(Amount in lakhs)
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Total
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Cost
Financial Assets
Investments 0 0 0 4412.17 0 4412.17
Trade Receivable’s 0 0 0 0 879.02 879.02
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 0 0 41.20 41.20
Other Bank Balances 0 0 0 0 0 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derivative Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 4412.17 920.22 5332.39
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trade Payables 0 0 0 0 158.10 158.10
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Derivative Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Financial Liabilities 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 158.10 158.10
For 315t March,2024
(Amount in lakhs)
Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Total
Level-1 Level-2 Level-3 Cost
Financial Assets

Investments 0 0 0 3946.23 0] 3946.23
Trade Receivable’s 0 0 0 0 1081.72 1081.72
Cash & Cash Equivalents 0 0 0 0 32.14 32.14
Other Bank Balances 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Loans 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Derivative Assets 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Other Financial Assets 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Total 0 0 0 3946.23 1113.86 5060.09

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 0 0 0 0 0 0
Trade Payables 0 0 0 0 182.53 182.53
Derivative Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Other Financial Liabilities 0 0 0 0 0] 0
Total 0 0 0 0 182.53 182.53

24. Additional Information, as required under Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, of Enterprises Consolidated as
Subsidiaries / Associates / Joint Ventures.

Name of the entity in Net Asset i.e. total assets minus . ) Share in other comprehensive Share in total
N Share in profit or loss ) _
the Group total liabilities income comprehensive income
As % of As % of
As % of As % of .
. . consolidated other total
consolidated Amount consolidated Amount . Amount Amount
) comprehensive comprehens
net assets profit or loss . o
income ive income
31% March 2025
Parent
Medi-Caps Limited 55.53% 6734.39 97.21% 5551 34,65% 2995 291.37% 85.46
Subsidiaries Indian
Medgel Private 44.47% 539327 (197.2) % (11261) 65.35% 56.48 (191.37) % (56.13)
Limited
Total 100.00% 12127.66 100.00% (57.10) 100% 86.43 100.00% 29.33
31 March 2024
Parent
Medi-Caps Limited 54,96% 6648.93 173.52% 388.82 32.10% 149,36 223.13% 538.18
Subsidiaries Indian
Medgel Private 45.04% 5449.41 (27352) % (612.89) 67.90% 31501 (123.13) % (296.98)
Limited
Total 100.00% 12098.33 100.00% (224.08) 100.00% 465.27 100.00% 241.20
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Note-02- Property, Plant and Equipment
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MEDI-CAPS LIMITED
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
Note : 3 Investments 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
a) [Investment in properties 107.93 107.93
b) |Investment in Equity instruments
i) |Other Investment (Quoted)
100 (100) Equity Shares of Natural Capsules 0.18 0.31
0.18 0.31
c) [Other Investments
LIC Group Gratuity Fund Scheme 76.75 69.83
d) [Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
SIP - ABSL Pure Value Fund 152.25 146.99
Reliance Large Cap Fund -SIP 145.61 125.33
HDFC Equity Fund -SIP 165.02 132.84
HDFC Liquid Fund 0.14 0.13
HDFC Focused 30 Fund 23.34 19.97
HDFC Focused 30 G 49.39 0.00
ICICI Prudential Flexicap Fund 25.18 24.21
ICICI Prudential liquid fund 0.15 0.15
ICICI Prudential liquid fund 25.96 0.00
ICICI Opportunities Fund 100.21 20.85
Mirae Asset Multicap Fund 25.37 23.65
IDFC Midcap Fund 76.74 70.32
White Oak Capital (Cash & Equity) 72.73 66.43
Carnelian Shift Strategy 94.75 0.00
360 One Wam Limited 160.11 0.00
Buoyant Capital Private Limited 102.59 0.00
Investment in Debentures (Quoted)
Centrum Retail Services Ltd. (Icd) 137.82 122.94
1434.12 823.67
1542.23 931.90
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments 1016.04 476.34
Aggregate Market value of quoted Investments 1357.56 754.14
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 184.68 177.76
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment
Note : 4 Other Non Current Assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security Deposits 38.72 38.73
38.72 38.73
Note : 5 Inventories
Raw Materials 165.50 370.51
Finished Goods 140.95 189.12
Packing Material 13.58 13.96
320.03 573.59
Note : 6 Investment
Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Axis Focused 25 Fund 12.00 11.54
SIP - IDFC Equity Fund 180.30 167.74
SIP - Reliance Top 200 Equity Fund 298.17 279.31
HDFC Low Duration Fund 301.21 346.80
HDFC Low duration fund 587.84 546.35
HDFC Banking & PSU Debt Fund 79.04 175.98
Kotak Special Opportunities Fund 86.71 0.00
Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund 0.00 274.01
Reliance Money Manager Fund- Growth 884.98 868.43
ICICI Prudential MF All season Bond Fund 168.06 154.58
SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund 0.00 48.68
ICICI Prudential MF All season Bond Fund 17.30 15.91
Motilal Oswal Flexi Cap Reg 87.90 0.00
Motilal Oswal Ultra Short Term Reg -G 39.00 0.00
Investment in Debentures
Centrum Retail Services Ltd.(lcd) 127.44 125.00
2869.94 3014.33
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments 1946.86 2116.40
Aggregate Market value of quoted Investments 2742.50 2889.33
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 127.44 125.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment 0.00 0.00
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 7 Trade Receivables 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
@ Trade Receivables considered good - Secured
(b) Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 879.02 1081.72
(c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
(d) Trade Receivables- Credit imapired
879.02 1081.72
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Amount in lakhs

As at As at
Note : 8 Cash & Cash Equivalents 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Balances with banks
In Current Accounts 40.74 3144
In Cash Credit Account 0.00 0.00
(b) Cheques, drafts on hands
(c)Cash in Hand 0.46 0.70
(a) earmarked balances with banks
(b) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings,
guarantees, and other commitments
41.20 32.14
Note : 9 Bank Balance
Balance with Scheduled and Noted Banks :
In Fixed Deposit Accounts 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
Note : 10 Other Current Assets
(i) Advances other than capital advances
Advance to Suppliers & Others 274.01 230.90
(ii) Others (to be specified)
Balances with Government Authorities 228 232
Advance Tax & TDS /TCS Receivable 216.87 316.24
MAT Credit Entitlement 207.99 207.99
Prepaid Expenses 15.05 16.63
Pre-Operative Exp 4.40 5.87
Deposit with Banks (FDR) 509.77 516.31
Accured Interest 3.23 3.02
1233.61 1299.27
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 11 Equity Share Capital 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Authorised Share Capital :
1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous Year 1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each) 1500.00 1500.00
Issued Share Capital
1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) 1247.00 1247.00
Subscribed and Paid Share Capital :
1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
(Previous Year 1,24,69,956 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) 1247.00 1247.00
1247.00 1247.00

Note: The Company has only one class of equity shares at a par value of Rs. 10. All the equity shares carry equal rights and
obligations including the right to receive dividend and also with respect to voting rights.

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Equity Shares Numbers Value Numbers Value
At the beginning of the year 12469956 1247.00 12469956 1247.00
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the and the year 12469956 1247.00 12469956 1247.00

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the company

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares as at
31.03.25 % of Holding 31.03.24 % of Holding
Alok K Garg 3225920 25.87% 3225920 25.87%
Manisha Garg 2694820 21.61% 2694820 21.61%
Sangeetha S 694400 557% 694400 557%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Name of Promoter 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024 9% Change
No. of shares % Held No. of shares % Held
R.C.Mittal 10000.00 0.08% 10000.00 0.08%| 0.00%
Alok K Garg 3225920.00 25.87% 3225920.00 25.87%| 0.00%
Manisha Garg 2694820.00 21.61% 2694820.00 21.61%| 0.00%
Nirmala Anantram Mittal 3172.00 0.03% 3172.00 0.03%| 0.00%
Trapti Investments LLP 307128.00 2.46% 307128.00 2.46%| 0.00%
Kusum Mittal 12000.00 0.10% 10000.00 0.08%| 0.02%
Gitika Agrawal 400.00 0.00% 400.00 0.00%| 0.00%
Palash Garg 38808.00 0.31% - - 0.31%
Akshit Garg 38304.00 0.31% - - 0.31%
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Amount in Lakhs

As at As at
Note : 12 Other Equity 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 9.90 9.90
Less: Adjustment for Investment in Share Written Off 0.00 0.00
9.90 9.90
Share Forfeiture Alc
As per last balance sheet 27.55 27.55
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 3263.49 3263.49
Add:Security Premium on Share issued during the year 0.00 0.00
3263.49 3263.49
General Reserve
As per last balance sheet 304.57 304.57
Surplus
Opening balance of Profit & Loss Alc 6195.08 6419.16
Add: Net profit for the current year -57.10 -224.08
Closing Balance 6137.98 6195.08
Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance of Other Comprehensive Income 1050.72 585.45
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 86.43 465.27
Closing Balance 1137.15 1050.72
10880.65 10851.33
Note : 13 Provisions
Provision for Gratuity 63.34 61.31
63.34 61.31
Note : 14 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
On Depreciation (Difference of as per Books & as per Income Tax Act) 41.45 42.89
41.45 42.89
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 15 Trade Payable 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Total Outstanding dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 0.00 0.00
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 158.10 182.53
158.10 182.53
As on 31st March 2025
Note : 15A Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) [MSME
(ii) [Others 156.17 0.12 0.65 1.17 158.10
(iii) | Disputed Dues- MSME
(iv) [ Disputed Dues- Others
As on 31st March 2024
Note : 15A Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) [MSME
(ii) [Others 166.71 2.00 0.00 13.81 182.53
Disputed Dues- MSME
(iv) [ Disputed Dues- Others
Amount in Lakhs
As at As at
Note : 16 Other Current Liabilites 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(a) Revenue Received in Advance 4254 156.93
(b) Other Advances
(c) Others
Audit Fee Payable 0.27 0.27
Bonus Payable 12.12 11.69
Commission Payable 4.86 4.86
ESI Payable 0.10 0.09
GST Payable 1.02 -7.76
Outstanding Liabilities 36.88 36.37
Professional Tax 0.28 0.12
Provident Fund 2.07 1.79
Unpaid Salary & Wages (Provision) 41.72 36.34
TDS on Consultancy 0.76 0.84
TDS on Contractor Payment 0.36 0.68
TDS on Salary 777 5.05
TDS on Purchase 0.06 0.04
Other 0.97 1.13
151.77 248.43
Note :17 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
For Taxation 0.00 95.00
0.00 95.00
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NOTES TO PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT

Amount in Lakhs

Note : 18 Revenue from Operation

For the year Ended
31 March 2025

For the year Ended
31 March 2024

Sale of product

Shop Sale 237.36 693.02
Soft Gelatin Capsule Sale 2300.08 1963.34

Other Operating Income
Miscellaneous Income 0.00 13.05
Interest Income 0.00 52.50
Scrap Sale 5.97 6.00
Lease Rent 4.30 6.60
2547.71 2734.51

Note :19 Other Incomes

Capital gain/ (Loss) on Mutual Fund 177.95 19.21
Dividend income 0.71 0.44
Interest Income 65.41 0.00
Miscellaneous Income 11.99 0.00
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 16.88 27.85
272.95 47.50

Note: Miscellaneous Income & Other Income were earlier recognized in Revenue from operations, however,

of revenue the same are reclassified in Other Income.

not being a part

Note : 20 Cost of Materials Consumed

A) Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock 370.51 406.30
Purchases 727.28 731.21
1097.79 113751
Less : Closing Stock 165.50 370.51
Raw Material Consumed 932.29 767.00
B) Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 13.96 6.92
Less: Goos Removed 0.00 0.00
Purchases 84.32 82.88
98.28 89.80
Less : Closing Stock 13.58 13.96
Packing Material Consumed 84.69 75.84
Grand total of Materials Consumed (A) + (B) 1016.99 842.84
Note : 21 Changes ininventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade

Closing Stock of :
Finished Goods 140.95 189.12
Stock in Process 0.00 0.00
Waste 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 140.95 189.12

Opening Stock of :
Finished Goods 189.12 293.67
Stock in Process 0.00 0.00
Waste 0.00 4.36
Total (B) 189.12 298.03
Increase/(Decrease) in Finished goods (A-B) -48.17 -108.91

Amount in Lakhs

Note : 22 Employees Remuneration & benefits

For the year Ended
31 March 2025

For the year Ended
31 March 2024

Salary, Wages, Allowances & other Benefits 545.05 488.29
Directors Remuneration 177.32 185.48
Gratuity 9.11 3.79

P.F. Contribution 24.88 27.72

Staff Welfare Expenses 2.01 1.60
758.36 706.88

Note : 23 Finance Cost

Interest on C.C. Limit 2.48 0.00

2.48 0.00
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Note : 24 Other Expenses

Advertisement & Publicity
Audit Fee
Annual Listing Fees
Bank Charges
Building Deviopment Expenses
Commission Expenses
Certificate & Standard Expenses
Charity & Donations
Consultancy Charges
Conweyance Expenses
Development Charges to AKVN
Electricity & Water
Freight Expenses
Factory Power & Fuel
Insurance Charges
Legal Expenses
Membership Fee & Subscription
Miscellaneous Expenses
Office & General Expenses
Postage, telegram
Professional Tax for Company
Pre-Operative Expenses
Printing & Stationary
Rent, Rates & Taxes
ROC Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance
Buildings
Machinery
Electricals
Other
Sales promotion Expenses
Security Charges
Stores & Spares Consumed
Telephone & Telex Charges
Tour & Trawvelling Expenses
QC Chemicals & Items
Vehicle Running & Maintenance
Website Maintenance Charges

1.45 20.65
3.30 3.30
4.87 5.18
2.29 3.66
0.00 11.03
30.86 46.16
15.72 11.32
0.13 0.37
116.51 202.20
11.70 8.19
331 3.31
5.90 6.88
137.14 153.52
167.72 148.15
16.24 15.96
0.15 2.35
0.37 6.60
58.57 73.98
0.17 0.00
3.10 1.35
0.00 0.03
1.47 147
10.80 8.01
3.91 454
0.56 0.51
26.93 38.49
20.32 48.13
4.44 6.71
9.61 1.23
57.30 56.57
13.68 14.35
11.69 5.46
2.36 2.22
20.08 38.81
35.74 27.96
108.26 100.56
0.34 0.13
906.95 1079.33

Note 25 Segment Information

On consolidated basis the Company is having two segments. One is related with Real Estate division in Medi-Caps Limited and other one is related with Pharma division in its

wholly owned subsidiary, Medgel Private Limited.

Amount in Lakhs

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
S.No. Segment Revenue Audited Audited
1 |Segment Revenue
Pharma Division 2306.05 2050.75
Real Estate Division 241.66 731.26
Other 0.00 0.00
Net Sale/Income From Operations 2547.71 2782.01
2 |Segment Results (Profit) (+)/ Loss (-) before tax and Interest
Pharma Division -110.13 -607.33
Real Estate Division 28.50 482.73
Other 0.00 0.00
Total -81.63 -124.60
Interest Income 0.00 0.00
Interest Expenses 2.48 0.00
Other Unallocable Expenditure net off 0.00 0.00
Unallocable Income 0.00 0.00
Profit Before Tax -84.11 -124.60
3 |Capital Employed
Segment Assets (A)
Pharma Division 5739.66 5919.27
Real Estate Division 6802.66 6809.22
Other 0.00 0.00
Total (A) 12542.32 12728.49
Segment Liabilities (B)
Pharma Division 346.40 469.86
Real Estate Division 68.27 160.30
Other 0.00 0.00
Total (B) 414.67 630.16
4 |Total Capital Employed (Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities)
Pharma Division 5393.27 5449.41
Real Estate Division 6734.39 6648.92
Other 0.00 0.00
Total Capital Employed (Segment Assets-Segment Liabilities) 12127.66 12098.33

Note 26 Deferred Tax:

Information on deferred tax has been provided in accordance with Ind AS-12 Accounting for taxation on income, issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The deferred tax assets for the year is Rs.1.45 Lakhs which has been recognized in the profit & Loss Account.
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Note 27 Payment to Auditors

For the year Ended
31st March 2025

For the year Ended
31st March 2024

Audit Fees
In other Capacity
Tax Audit Fee

3.10 3.10
0.20 0.20
3.30 3.30

Note 28 Related Party Disclosure

Information on Related party transactions as per Ind AS 24 on related party disclosure:
(1) Detail of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2025

S.No Related Party

Transactions

For the year Ended
31st March 2025

For the year Ended
31st March 2024

1 Mr. Alok K. Garg
Managing Director

Remuneration

- Medicaps Limited 84.00 41.95
- Medgel private Limited - 33.37
2 Mrs. Manisha Garg Remuneration 36.65 33.65
Whole time Director of Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
3 [Akshit Garg Remuneration
- Medicaps Limited (General Manager) 30.00 11.92
- Medgel private Limited (Director) - 19.84
4 |Praveen Nalwaya Remuneration 56.67 56.67
Whole time Director of Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
5|Mr. Palash Garg Remuneration 6.00 5.50
Vice President in Medgel Pvt.Ltd.
6 |Mrs. Saloni Garg Remuneration
-Medicaps Limited (Senior Manager) 24.00 7.53
-Medgel private Limited (General Manager) - 13.74
7 Mrs.Sandhya Nalwaya Remuneration 22.24 21.92
Manager in Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
8 Medicaps Charitable Trust Lease Rent 1.50 6.00
9 Mr. Hemant Sethi Remuneration 14.96 12.47
Chief Financial Officer of Medicaps Limited
10 |Mr. Abhishek Jain Remuneration 6.90 6.44
Company Secretary of Medicaps Limited
11 |Mr. Prakhar Dubey Remuneration 0.00 0.86
Company Secretary
12 |Vaibhav Singhai Remuneration 4.04 1.31
Company Secretary of Medgel Private Limited
13 |Lokesh Parmar Remuneration 9.14 7.89
CFO of Medgel Private Limited
14 |Mrs. Yogita Sethi
Wife of CFO of medicaps Limited Consultancy 4.52 1.00
15 |Medgel Pwt. Ltd. Sales 0.46 0.00
Subsidiary Company
(on arm length basis in the ordinary course of business)
(11) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
. As at As at
S.No Related Party Transactions 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
1 Mr. Alok K. Garg Remuneration 7.00 7.00
Managing Director
2 Mrs. Manisha Garg Remuneration 3.00 3.00
Whole time Director of Medgel Pwvt. Ltd.
3 [Akshit Garg Remuneration 2.50 2.50
General Manager of Medicaps & Director of Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
4 Praveen Nalwaya Remuneration 4.62 4.62
Whole time Director of Medgel Pwt. Ltd.
5 Mr. Palash Garg Remuneration 0.50 0.50
Vice President in Medgel Pvt.Ltd.
6 Mrs. Saloni Garg Remuneration 2.00 0.00
Senior Manager in Medicaps Limited & General Manager in Medgel Pvt.Ltd.
7 Mrs.Sandhya Nalwaya Remuneration 2.10 1.78
Manager in Medgel Pvt. Ltd.
8 Medicaps Charitable Trust Lease Rent 0.00 0.50
9 |Mr. Hemant Sethi Remuneration 1.65 1.42
Chief Financial Officer of Medicaps Limited
10 |Mr. Abhishek Jain Remuneration 0.57 0.57
Company Secretary of Medicaps Limited
11 |Mr. Prakhar Dubey Remuneration 0.00 0.00
Company Secretary
12 |Vaibhav Singhai Remuneration 0.33 0.33
Company Secretary of Medgel Private Limited
13 |Lokesh Parmar Remuneration 0.80 0.71
CFO of Medgel Private Limited
14 |Mrs. Yogita Sethi
Wife of CFO of medicaps Limited Consultancy 0.00 0.00
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Note 29 Earning Per Share
Earning per share, the numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Diluted Earning per shares:

Particulars
i) Profit after tax used as the numerator -57.10 -224.08
i) Basic/Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as the denominator 124.70 124.70
iii)  Nominal Value of Equity shares 10/- 10/-
iv) Basic & Diluted Earning per Equity Share
For Continue Operation -0.46 -1.80
For Disontinue Operation 0.00 0.00
For Continue and Discontinue Operation -0.46 -1.80
Amount in Lakhs
For the year Ended | For the year Ended
Note 30 Employee Benefits 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
a. Defined benefits plan
| Change in obligation during the year
1 Present value of Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 61.30 58.87
2 Current Service Cost 11.20 14.29
3 Past Service Cost 0.00 0.00
4 Interest Cost 3.96 4.43
5 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses -6.06 -14.93
6 Benefits Paid -7.08 -1.36
7 Present value of Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 63.33 61.30
1 Change in assets during the year ended March 31
1 Plan assets at the beginning of the year 69.83 62.84
2 Settlements 0.00 0.00
3 Expected return on plan assets 4.89 456
4 Contribution by Employer 9.10 3.79
5 Actual benefits paid -7.08 -1.36
6 Deductions 0.00 0.00
7 Plan assets at the end of the year 76.75 69.83
1 Net Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet at March 31
1 Present value of Defined benefits Obligation as at March 31. 63.33 61.30
2 Fair value of plan assets as at March 31 76.75 69.83
3 Fund Status (Surplus / (Deficit)) 1341 8.53
4 Net Assets / (Liabilty) as at end of the year 13.41 8.53
\Y Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the
year ended March 31
1 Current Service Cost 11.20 14.29
2 Interest Cost 0.00 0.00
3 Expected return on plan assets -4.89 -4.56
4 Past service cost 0.00 0.00
5 Net Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 0.00 0.00
6 Total Expenses (Net) 6.32 9.72
\% The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan N.A. N.A.

Note 31: The company does not have outstanding for more than 30 days as on 31st March 2025 of S.S.I units the respective

parties.

Note 32: The previous year’s figures have been regrouped/ restated wherever necessary to confirm with the current years’

classification.

Note 33: Ratio

Ratios Numerator Denominator FY2024-25 FY2023-24 Change Explanation

Current Ratio (in times) Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 1725 1141 51.14%; The Increasle "7 .@IO s because of decreese
in current Liabilities.

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Long Term Borrowings+ Short Term Borrowings Total Equity

Eamings for Debt service = Net profit after tax+ Non- L -
. " . . Debt service = Interest + Principal
Debt-Service Cowerage Ratio cash operating expenses + interest + other non cash Repayment (Non-Curent debts only)
j Interest on debt debited in P&L i v

The Increase in ratio is because of

Return on Equity Ratio (in times) Profit for the year after taxes Average Shareholder's Equity -0.005) 0.020 -76.43%|significant decrease in the profit for the
year.

Inventory Turnower Ratio (in times) Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 174 346 -49.87 The decrease in raio is because of

reduction in sales during the year.

Trade Receviable Turnower Ratio (in

fimes) Revenue From Operations Average Trade Receivable 260 284 -8.50%
Trade Payble Turnower Ratio (in times) Purchases during the year Average Trade Payable Vi 314 35.92%; The increase in ratl}o s becais of reduced
trade payables during the year.
Net Capital Turnower Ratio (in times) Revenue From Operations Working Capita (ie. Total.cuAr.rstm assets 051 050 1.22%
less Total Current Liabilities)
The Increase in ratio is because of
Net Profit Ratio (in %) Profit for the year before exception items Revenue From Operations -3.30% -4.56% -27.60%|significant decrease in the profit for the
year.
Average capital Employed The Increase in ratio is because of
Return On Capital Employed Eamings before Interest & Tax (Capital Employed = Net Worth) -0.007 -0.010 -32.60% ;E]anrlflcam decrease in the profit for the
. The | in ratio is b f
Retun on Investment Income Generated from Investment Funds Average invested Funds 0.043 0005 751.60% ¢ ncr.ease "7 e s enauﬁe 0
of during the year.
Notes-

1. The ratios are calculated on absolute figures.

2. The Ratios calculated in respect of Inventory and trade payables have been updated to include COGS and purchases during
the year respectively.
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Note 34: Other Statutory Information

1. The Funds borrowed by the company from banks and financial institutions have been used for the specific purpose
for which they were raised.

2. All the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee) title deeds are held in the name of the company and Company is the sole owner
of these immovable properties.

3. The Company does not have any Benami property, and no proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.

4. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

5. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

6. The Company have charges which are yet to be satisfied with ROC beyond the statutory period the detail of which
are:

Details of Charges yet to be satisfied with ROC
Charge ID Charge Date of Amount Reason
Holder's Creation
Name
90207250 24/03/1992 3.00 | Medi-Caps Limited has filed the forms for
Bank of satisfaction of charge in physical mode and
Baroda the same are not traceable as the matter is
90202622 05/10/1990 10.00 | very old. The Company has made several
Bank of requests to the ROC for deletion of the
Baroda charge ID, however, in absence of the
90204557 Bank of 24/07/1986 7.00 | adequate evidence same could not be
Baroda processed. Due to that these charges are still
being unsatisfied as reflecting on MCA
Portal.

7. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

8. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

9. The Company has not issued any such type of security for a specific purpose.

10. The Company has not proposed or declare dividend during the year.

11. The Company has initiated the legal proceedings under section 138 of negotiable instruments act and u/s 420 of the

Indian penal code, against Jay formulation Limited before First Class Civil Judge, District Court, Indore. The same
has been initiated for recovery of outstanding dues.
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